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ndependent Auditors Repart

To the Members of Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (formerly
known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited
(formerly known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited) (hereinafter referred to as the
“Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as
“the Group"), its associate, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the
consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of the other auditor on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries
and associate as were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group and its associate as at 31 March 2022, of its consolidated profit and other
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended. '

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and its associate in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us along with the consideration of reports of the other auditors referred to in paragraph (a) of
the “Other Matters” section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter(s)

We draw attention to Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements, which explains that due to a
significant amount of dividend received in previous year from a subsidiary company, the ‘income from
financial assets’ of the Holding Company is more than 50 per cent of the gross income for the year ended
31 March 2021. Since the Holding Company's financial assets as at that date are also more than
50 per cent of its total assets, the Holding Company meets the criteria for classification as a Non-Banking
Financial Company (NBFC) as per the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) press release vide No. 1998-99/1269
dated 8 April 1999. As per the Holding Company such dividend income is non-recurring in nature and
does not represent income from ordinary activities of the Holding Company and the Holding Company
does not intend to carry on the business as a NBFC. The Holding Company has made a submission to
the RBI in July 2022 stating the facts of the matter, its assessment that the requirement to apply for NBFC
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B'S R & Associates LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (formerly known as Pristine
Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)

registration would not be applicable due to the one-off nature of the dividend income during the year
ended 31 March 2021 and its intent to remain engaged in its principal business of logistics and allied
activities. The Holding Company has not received any communication from RBI in this regard till date.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s directors' report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. '

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the audit reports of other
auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including
its associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance-of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In‘preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group and and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of
each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and and and of its associate
are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (formerly known as Pristine
Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements. o

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

~ obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associate to cease to continue as a going
concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
" transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entitiés or
business activities within the Group and its associate to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of the financial information of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further described in paragraph
(a) of the section titled “Other Matters” in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards. o
\
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (formerly known as Pristine
Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)

Other Matter(s)

a. We did not audit the financial statements/financial information of 9 subsidiaries, whose financial
statements/financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 8,756.96 millions (before consolidation) as
at 31 March 2022, total revenues of Rs. 6,761.90 millions (before consolidation) and net cash flows
amounting to Rs. 2.58 millions (before consolidation) for the year ended on that date, as considered
in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the
Group's share of net profit(and other comprehensive income) of Rs. Nil for the year ended 31 March
2022, in respect of associate, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These
financial statements/financial information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements,
in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and
associate, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associate is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

b. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries and associate as were
audited by other auditors, as noted in the "Other Matters” paragraph, we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors.

c. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. .

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, associate
company incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies and its associate
company incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associate company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B".
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (formerly known as Pristine

Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, as noted
in the “Other Matters” paragraph:

a.

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at
31 March 2022 on the consolidated financial position of the Group and its associate. Refer Note
29(c) and 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

.The Group and its associate did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts

including derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2022.

There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies, and associate company
incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2022.

d (i) The respective management of the Holding Companyits subsidiary companies and associate

(ii)

company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, on the date of this audit report,
other than as disclosed in the Note 45(c) to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies or
associate company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies or
associate company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

= provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The respective management of the Holding Companyits subsidiary companies and associate
company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge ‘and belief, on the date of this audit report,
other than as disclosed in the Note 45(d) to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have
been received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies or associate
company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of
such subsidiary companies or assoclate company shall:

« directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

«  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) above contain any material misstatement.

The Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associate company incorporated in India
have neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report {Conﬁnbed}

Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (formerly known as Pristine
Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports
of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies and associate company incorporated in India
which were not audited by us, the remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company
and its subsidiary companies, associate company to its directors is in accordance with the provisions

- of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies, associate company is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197
of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:116231W/W-100024

Ravi Kant Thakur

Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No.: 503818
Date: 12 September 2022 " ICAI UDIN:22503818ARWQLM7717
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (formerly
known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited) for the year ended
31 March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following
companies incorporated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, have
unfavourable remarks, qualification or adverse remarks given by the respective auditors in their
reports under the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (CARO):

Clause
Relationship number of the
Sr. Name of the entities CIN with the CARO report
No. Holding which is
Company unfavourable
or qualified or
adverse
1 Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects | U70102DL2008PL | Holding (i)(c),(vii)(b),(xvi
Limited C178106 Company of | )(a) and(xvii)
the group
2 Kanpur Logistics Park Private | U74900DL2009PT | Subsidary (vii)(b),(ix){a)
Limited C193936 and (xx)(b)
3 Pristine Mega Logistics Park | U63000DL2012PT | Subsidary (i) (b), (vii)(a),(ix)
Private Limited C239675 (a) and(ix)(d)
4 Northeast Infralogistics & | UB3090PB2015PT | Subsidary (xvii)
Terminals Private Limited C039235
5 Pristine Malwa Logistics Park | UB3000DL2012PT | Subsidary (xvii)
Private Limited C242966
6 Techlog Support Services Private | U74999DL2010PT | Subsidary (xvii)
Limited C202348
T Pristine Mega Food Park Private | U15410DL2012PT | Subsidary vii(b)
Limited C243637
8 Pristine Hindustan Infraprojects | U60300DL2016PT | Subsidary (xvii)
Private Limited C291048
9 Indomatrix  Logistics  Private | U63040DL2013PT | Subsidary (xvii)
Limited C258528
10 Magadh Mega Leather Park | U45200DL2013PT | Associate (xvii)
Private Limited C256596

The above does not include comments, with respect to one of subsidary company incorporated

\»
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B S R & Associates LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (formerly
known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited) for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

in Nepal as the CARO reporting is not applicable on it.

For B SR & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's: Registration No.:116231W/W-100024

Ravi Kant Thakur

Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No.: 503818
Date: 12 September 2022 ICAl UDIN:22503818ARWQLM7717
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (formerly known as
Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited) for the year ended
31 March 2022 -

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects
Limited (formerly known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited) (hereinafter referred to as
“‘the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal

financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and such companies
incorporated in India under the Act which are its subsidiary companies and its associate, as of that date.

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements/financial information of subsidiary companies and associate
company, as were audited by the other auditors, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated
in India which are its subsidiary companies or, its associate company, have, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial
controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential
components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note").

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the respective company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due

to fraud or error. i
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B S R & Associates LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (formerly known as
Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited) for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
of the relevant subsidiary companies and associate company in terms of their reports referred to in the
Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matter(s)

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements/financial information insofar as it
relates to 8 subsidiary companies and 1 associate company, which are companies incorporated in India,
is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

\
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B S R & Associates LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (formerly known as
Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited) for the year ended
31 March 2022 (Continued)

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s. Registration No.:1 16231WNV-1QOO24

Ravi Kant Thakur

_ Partner
Place: New Delhi Membership No.: 503818
Date: 12 September 2022 ICAI UDIN:22503818ARWQLM7717
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Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (Formerly known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

(All amounts in millions of %, except share data and as stated otherwise)

I Assets
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Right-of-use assets
(c) Capital work-in-progress
(d) Investment property
(e) Goodwill
(f) Other intangible assets
(g) Intangible assets under development
(h) Financial assets
(1) Investments
(i1) Others
(i) Deferred tax assets (net)
(j) Non-current tax assets (net)
(k) Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

(2) Current assets

(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash
equivalents above
(iv) Others

(b) Other current assets

Total current assets
Total assets

IT Equity
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interest
Total equity

I1I Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilites
(iii) Others
(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liablities (net)
(d) Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Note

3a
16
3b
3c
3d
3e

G~ O Lh

12
13

15
16
19
20
6A
21

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021*

As at
1 April 2020*

3.206.19 3,350.89 2,151.29
2,755.09 3,184.28 1,804.80
49.57 117.66 221.65
276.73 266.27 213.40
39.93 39.93 39.93
119.94 133.14 150.99
17.88 15.03 11.45
45.50 33.88 :
208.07 42048 217.81
302.12 137.75 30.02
145.51 130.25 188.03
101.08 106.05 153.24
7,267.61 7,935.61 5,182.61
1,452.37 1,072.36 1,038.88
163.25 165.00 187.66
1.218.73 621.29 355.39
22.31 13.78 14.98
219.45 312.57 154.50
3,076.11 2,185.00 1,751.41
10,343.72 10,120.61 6,934.02
268.35 268.35 268.35
3,538.87 3,578.89 3.495.34
3,807.22 3,847.24 3,763.69
(34.57) 55.94 110.59
3,772.65 3,903.18 3,874.28
1.990.29 1,696.81 443.24
2,611.66 2,924.58 1,478.49
16.19 27.82 172.94
23.30 19.65 11.20
- 7.05 7.96
33.69 36.86 29.15
4,675.13 4,712.77 2,142.98




Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (Formerly known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(All amounts in millions of T, except share data and as stated otherwise)
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 17 856.45 566.56 436.97
(ii) Lease liabilities 16 397.57 276.32 128.16
(iii) Trade payables
1. Dues of micro enterprises and small
; 434 - -
enterprises 18
2 Ducg of creditors other (haln micro 28077 28237 250.45
enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Others 19 188.24 231.85 31.60
(b) Other current liabilities 21 145.78 110.30 65.17
(c) Provisions 20 4.97 4.25 3.69
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) TA 17.82 33.01 0.72
Total current liabilities 1,895.94 1,504.66 916.76
Total liabilities . 6,571.07 6,217.43 3,059.74
Total equity and liabilities 10,343.72 10,120.61 6,934.02
*Restated refer note 43
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes referred to form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For BS R & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Number, 116231W/W-100024 (Formerly known as Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Private
\ Limited)
Ravi Kant Thakur 7 Amit Kumar Sanjay Mawar
Partner Whole time Director ‘Whole time Director
Membership No: 503818 DIN : 01928813 DIN : 00303822
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: | 2- Szis’lﬂuﬂ.]uv» 2021 Date: (2 S'bt;w\- 2022
~Kllns_

P. K. Mishra Nandan Chopra
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: A11723

Place; New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: |7 &M 192 - Date: |2 S(Fﬁuuhﬂ._, 20232 Dater [2 SW 2021




Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (Formerly known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All eomowunts in milltons of T, except share data and as stated otherwise)

Note Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021*

I Income
Revenue from operations 22 7,042.87 5,569.33
Other income 23 107.93 63.39
Total income 7,150.80 5,632.72
I1 Expenses
Freight and handling expenses 24 5,113.65 4,017.89
Employee benefits expense 25 23421 176.70
Finance costs 26 542,59 339.60
Depreciation and amortization expense® 27 986.87 696.44
Impairment allowance for financial assets 15.63 102.90
Other expenses 28 352.54 249.84
Total expenses 7,245.49 5,583.37
III (Loss)/Profit before tax (94.69) 49,35
IV Tax expense
Current tax (53.47) (109.66)
Deferred tax credit / (charge) 7 171.43 108.57
Total tax expense 117.96 (1.09)
V Profit for the year 23.27 48.26
VI Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to the statement of
profit or loss

(i) Remeasurements of defined benefit liability gain/(loss) 0.74 (3.62)

(i1} Income tax relating to above {0.03) 0.08
V11 Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 0.71 (3.54)
VIII Total comprehensive income for the year 23.98 44.72
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the company 77.75 86.89
Mon-controlling interests (54.48) (38.63)

23.27 48.26

Other comprehensive income / (loss) attributable to :
Owners of the Company 0.69 (3.34)
Non-controlling interest 0.02 (0.20)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 0.71 (3.54)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Owners of the company 78.44 83.55
MNon-controlling interest (54.46) (38.83)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 23,98 44.72
Earning per equity share of face value of¥ 5 each 33
Basic (in T) 1.45 1.62
Diluted (in ¥) 1.45 162
* Restated refer note 43
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes referred to form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For BS R & Associates LLP

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number. 11623 1W/W-100024

Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited
(Formerly known as Pristine  Logistics  and ‘-
Inﬁa{rojecfx Private Limited)

\
Ravi Kant Thakur Amit Kumar
Partner Whole time Director
Membership No: 503818 DIN : 01928813

Sanjay Mawar
Whole time Director
DIN : 00303822

Place; New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: 12 swwz, W Zo2r

P. K. Mishra
Company Secretary
Membership No: A11723

Nandan Chopra
Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi Place; New Delhi

Date: |2 S&k’twb{t 2022 Date: |2 S&Pﬂe_w{,u\, 20 22

Place: New Delhi

Date: M' S{FJMW %‘l__’l,



Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (Formerly known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in millions of T, except share data and as stated otherwise)

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
A, Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/Profit before tax (94.69) 49,35
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortization expenses 086.87 696.44
Impairment allowance for financial asstes 15.63 102.90
Impairment allowance against capital advance 9.21 -
Bad debts written off 4.54 7.59
Loss on sale of investment - 0.58
Liabilities no longer required written back (30.00) -
Provision for doubtful debts written back (2.67) -
Income on investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (1.93) =
Interest income on refund of income tax (4.68) =
Interest income on security deposits (0.05) (0.25)
Interest income on bank deposits (49.49) (45.97)
Interest on unwinding of discount of security deposit 1.31 0.01
Loss on sale of leaseback of assets - 0.99
(Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (0.03) -
Interest on borrowings 221.35 76.62
Interest expense on lease liabilities 314.62 262.97
Gain on lease modification (2.74) -
Operating cash flow before changes in working capital 1,367.25 1,151.23
Changes in working capital
Trade receivables (397.51) (143.97)
Other financial assets (26.65) (10.82)
Other assets 94.19 (163.27)
Trade payables 32.73 31.92
Other liabilities 3231 52.84
Other financial liabilities 0.81 11:72
Provisions 5.11 5.39
Cash generated from operations 1,108.24 935.04
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (79.27) (19.81)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 1,028.97 915.23
A. Cash flows from investing activities
Accequisition of property, plant and equipment's (including capital-work: (290.61) (1,271.68)
in-progress, capital advances and payable for property. plant and
equipment’s)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipments 14.68 -
Additions to right of use assets (19.39) (3.32)
Accquisition of intangible asset and intangible asset under development (8.39) (3.62)
Accquisition of investment property (28.63) (72.72)
Disposal of investment property - - -
Investment in mutual funds (9.69) (34.46)
Investment / proceeds of bank deposits (having original maturity of (586.75) (265.90)
more than 3 months) (net)
Bank deposits (having maturity of more than 12 months) 183.28 (179.31)
Interest received 84.82 37.01
Net cash flow (used in) investing activities (B) (660.68) (1,794.00)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares to non-controlling interest 6.74 -
Purchase of non-controlling interest d (161.25) -
Proceeds of non-current borrowings 516.72 1,343.15
Repayment of non-current borrowings (197.94) (61.13)
Proceeds from short term borrowing (net) 262.17 101.14
Dividend paid to non-controlling interest - (16.00)
Interest paid (217.15) (75.76)
Repayment of lease liability (including interest) (579.33) (435.29)
Net cash flow (used in) / generated from financing activities (C) (370.04) 856.11
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (1.75) (22.66)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 165.00 187.66

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 163.25 165.00




Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (Formely known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts in millions of ¥, except share data and as stated otherwise)

(a) The Consolidated Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS-7)- Statement of Cash Flows as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises of

Cash on hand 1.75 2.37
Balances with banks:

Current Accounts 161.50 162.63
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 10) 163.25 165.00
Cash and cash equivalents in Cash Flow Statement 163.25 165.00

(c) Refer note 40 for reconciliation of financing activities forming part of the cash flow statement.

The accompanying notes referred to form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For B SR & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Pristine Logisties & Infraprojects Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Number, 116231W/W-100024 (Formerly known as Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects

Private Limited)

o

-

Ravi Kant Thakur Amit Kumar Sanjay Mawar

Pariner Whole time Director Whole time Director

Membership No: 503818 DIN : 01928813 DIN : 00303822
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: |2 Siﬁ?ﬂ-ﬂbﬂ 2022 Date; |2 fef;iﬁu&h.. 9022

Vs mﬁ%,
P. K. Mishra Nanddn Chopra

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: A11723

Place: New Delhi Place; New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: | ) S{FM&;.QF\, Py g 1 Date: ILSC-#“CLMLM« 2022~ Date: |2 SQ%M 2020




Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (Formerly known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year 31 March 2022
(Al amonnts in millions of ¥, except share data and as stated otherwise)

A. Equity share capital (refer note 12) Number of |Amount
shares
Balance as at 1 April 2020 2,68,34,754 268.35
Changes in equity share capital due to prior - -
period errors
Restated balance as at 1 April 2020 2,68,34,754 268.35
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2021 2,68,34,754 268.35
Balance as at 1 April 2021 2,68,34,754 268.35
Changes in equity share capital due to prior - -
period errors
Restated balance as at 1 April 2021 2,68,34,754 268.35
Cl in equity share capital during the year - -
Add: Equity share due to splitting of face value 2,68,34,754 -
fromT10to %5
Balance as at 31 March 2022 5,36,69,508 268.35
B. Other equity (refer note 13)
Reserve and surplus Total other
Retained Securities Capital Remeasurement of equity Non
Particulars earnings premium reserve defined benefi attributable to | controlling | Total equity
liability the owners of | interests
the Comp
Balance as at 1 April 2021 (2,072.00) 5,654.25 0.15 (3.51) 3,578.89 55.94 3,634.83
Profit / (loss) for the vear 77.75 - - 77.75 (54.48) 23.27
Other comprehensive income for the year, net - - - 0.69 0.69 0.02 0.71
of income tax
Transactions with the owners, recorded
directly in equity
Contribution by and distribution to owners
(a) Purchase of non-controlling interest (118.84) - - - (118.84) (42.41) (161.25)
(b) Transfer of non-controlling interest 0.38 - - - 0.38 6.36 6.74
Balance as at 31 March 2022 (2,112.71) 5,654.25 0.15 (2.82) 3,538.87 (34.57) 3,504.30
Reserve and surplus Total other
Retained Securities Capital Remeasurement of equity Non
Particulars earnings premium reserve defined benefit attributable to | controlling | Total equity
liability the owners of interests
the Company
Balance as at 1 April 2020 (2,158.89) 5,654.25 0.15 {0.17) 3,495.34 110.59 3,605.93
Profit / (loss) for the vear 86.89 - - - 86.89 (38.63) 48.26
Other comprehensive income for the year, net - - - (3.34) (3.34) (0.20) (3.54)
of income tax
Transactions with the owners, recorded
directly in equity
Contribution by and distribution to owners
(a) Dividend paid by subsidiary company - - - - - (16.00) (16.00)
(b) On account issue of shares to non- 5 = E = - 0.18 0.18
controlling interest
Balance as at 31 March 2021 (2,072.00) 5,654.25 0.15 (3.51) 3,578.89 55.94 3,634.83
For BSR & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Number. 116231W/W-100024 (Formerly known as Pristine Logistics and
dnjtaprry‘ecm Private Limited)
- <
Ravi Kant Thakur mit Kumar anjity Mawar

Partner
Membership No: 503818

Place: New Delhi

Date: |2 S’C-I"J/}-Mb‘% RO

Whole time Director
DIN ; 01928813

—Alhdons

P. K. Mishra
Company Secretary
Membership No: A11723

Place: New Delhi

Date: |1 Sf’l)Mm, 20i2

Whole time Director
DIN : 00303822

Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: |2-Se }'l&/wm Ao




Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Group overview

1.1
1.1.1

Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (“The Group” or “Holding Group”) was incorporated as a
Private Limited Group in the State of New Delhi, India. During the year the name of the company has been
changed to Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited from Prisitne Logistics & Infraprojects Private
Limited. These consolidated financial statements comprise the Holding Group, its subsidiaries (together
referred to as “the Group”) and associate. The Group is engaged in the business of providing end to end
logistics solutions and supply chain management to the customers. It includes road transportation, handling,
warehousing services and all other related activities with respect to cargo and containers.

Basis and Accounting Policies
Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements (financial statements) have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

New and amended standards adopted
The Company has adopted the following amendments to Ind AS standards from 1 April 2021:
e Extension of COVID-19 related concessions —amendments to Ind AS 116
e Interest rate benchmark reform — amendments to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, Ind AS 107,
Financial Instruments: Disclosures, Ind AS 104, Insurance Contracts and Ind AS 116, Leases.
The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in current and prior
periods and are not expected to significantly affect any future periods.

Amendments to standards issued but not vet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide notification dated 23 March 2022 notified Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022 which amended the following accounting standards. These
amendments are effective from 1 April 2022 and early adoption is permitted in some cases.

Ind AS 16, Property Plant and equipment

Ind AS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Ind AS 101, First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards
Ind AS 103, Business Combination

Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments

e Ind AS 41, Agriculture

The above amendments are not likely to have any material impact on the financial statements of the
Company for the current or future reporting period.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 12* September
2022.

2.1.2 Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS 110 on “Consolidated
financial statements” and Ind AS 112 on “Disclosure of interest in other entities”. The Financial Statements
of the entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as that of the
Holding Group’s i.e. year ended March 31, 2022,

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the following basis:

The Group is able to exercise control over the operating decisions of the investee Group, resulting in
variable returns to the Group, and accordingly, the same has been classified as investment in subsidiary and
are combined on a line by line basis by adding together the book values of items of assets, liabilities,
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Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

income and expenses after fully eliminating intra group balances and intra group transactions in accordance

with Ind AS (Ind AS-110) - “Consolidated financial statements” referred to in Section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act').

An investment in an associate has been accounted as per the equity method of consolidation from the date

on which it falls within the definition of an associate in accordance with Ind AS (Ind AS-28) - “Investments

in Associates and Joint Ventures”.

Details of the consolidated subsidiary and shareholding pattern are as follows:

Name of subsidiary / associates Country of Percentage of interest
incorporation
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Subsidiaries
Pristine Magadh Infrastructure Private | India 77.27% 77.27%
Limited -
Pristine Mega Logistics Park Private | India 100.00% 100.00%
Limited
Pristine Mega Food Park Private Limited India 90.71% 90.71%
Kanpur Logistics Park Private Limited India 100% 90.00%
Techlog Support Services Private Limited | India 70.16% 70.16%
Indofnatrix Logistics Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Pristine Hindustan Infraprojects Private | India 50.00% 51.00%
Limited
Northeast Infralogistics & Terminals | India 100.00% 100.00%
Private Limited (Formerly known as
Pristine Ludhiana Terminals Private
Limited) (wef April 12, 2017)
Pristine Malwa Logistics Park Private | India 100.00% 100.00%
Limited
Pristine Valley Dryport Private Limited .

Out of India 64.00% 64.00%
Associates
Magadh Mega Leather Park Private | India 33.34% 33.34%
Limited

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions
and other events in similar circumstances and are presented, the extent possible, in the same manner as the

Holding Company's standalone financial statements,

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intragroup
transactions, are eliminated. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only

to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

2.1.3

2.1.4

In case of foreign subsidiaries, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the
year. All assets and liabilities are converted at rates prevailing at the end of the year. Any exchange
difference arising on consolidation is recognised in the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (FCTR).”

Foreign subsidiary company is newly incorporated company in Nepal and the holding company is one of
the promoter company therefor no goodwill or capital reserve is recognized.

The difference between the costs of investment in the subsidiaries over the net assets at the time of
acquisition of shares is recognized in the consolidated financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve,
as the case may be.

Basis of measurement

These Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial assets or liability that are measured at fair value or amortized cost (refer to accounting policy on
financial instruments). The methods used to measure fair values are discussed further in notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees, which is the Group’s functional and presentation
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions and two decimals thereof except share
data and per share data, unless otherwise stated.

Current and non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is current when it is:

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle:
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non- current as per the Group’s operating cycle
and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and
the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents,
the Group has ascertained its operating cycle to be within 12 months for the purpose of current and non-
current classification of assets and liabilities.
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Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

2.1.6

% 5§

Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current.
Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these Ind AS financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised prospectively.

Judgements

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2022 is included in the following notes:

- Lease classification- refer 2.2.10 and Note 16
Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties made in applying accounting policies that have
the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the
following notes:

- Estimation of current tax expense and recognition of deferred tax assets (refer 2.2.11)

- Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions (refer note 2.2.8)

- Estimation of expected useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment (refer 2.2.1)

- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood
and magnitude of an outflow of resources (refer 2.2.6)

- Impairment of financial assets (refer 2.2.4.1.f)

- Impairment test of non-financial assets: Key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts (refer 2.2.9)

Measurement of fair values

The Group's accounting policies and disclosures require/ may require measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Group has an established control framework with
respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a team that has overall responsibility for
overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values.

The team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the team
assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet
the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be
classified.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).
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Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

22

2.2.1

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,

Significant accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

2.2.1.1 Initial recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation/ amortization
and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of
bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

2.2.1.2 Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable
that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably.

2.2.1.3 Derecognition

Property, plant and equipment is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their
use or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment, and are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2.2.1.4 Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives using the written down value method and is generally recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by the
end of the lease term. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant & equipment during the year is charged on
pro-rata basis from/up to the date in which the asset is available for use/disposed.
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Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

2.2.2

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted
if appropriate.

Where it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the
enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, subsequent expenditure on a property plant
and equipment along-with its unamortized depreciable amount is charged off prospectively over the revised
useful life.

Depreciation is accordingly provided at the rates calculated on the basis of useful life prescribed in Part C
of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 which in view of management are reflective of the useful life of

such assets except for the following assets:

Name of asset Life of asset As per Schedule II
(Companies Act, 2013)

Building* 10 to 30 years 30 years

Computers 3 years 3 years

Furniture & Fittings 5 to 10 years 5 years

Motor Vehicles 5 to 10 years 8 years

Office equipment 5to 15 years 5 years

Plant & Machinery 15 to 30 years 15 years

Computer Software 6 to 10 years 6 years

Roads 7 to 10 years 10 years

Railway Sidings* 10 to 60 years 15 years

Trailers 8 to 15 years 15 years

*Based on independent technical evaluation, the estimated useful life of certain items of railway sidings
and building is different from the useful life as prescribed under Part C of schedule II of the Companies Act
2013, which management believes is the representative of useful lives of these property, plant and
equipment.

Leasehold land is amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of lease.

Intangible assets and intangible assets under development and amortization

2.2.2.1 Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives, are measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes any directly attributable
incidental expenses necessary to make the assets ready for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable
that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably.

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalizations under intangible assets are carried as intangible
assets under development till they are ready for their intended use.
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Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
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2.24

2.2.4.1

2.2.2.2 Derecognition

An intangible asset is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or upon
their disposal. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of intangible assets are determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of intangible assets and are recognized in the statement of
profit and loss.

2.2.2.3 Amortization
Amortization is computed to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual value over

their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, and is included in amortization in Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and
adjusted if appropriate.

Entity Particulars Useful life
Pristine Mega Logistics Park | Rail license 12 years
Private Limited _
Pristine Mega Logistics Park | Software 6/8 years
Private Limited

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of the
financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (‘SPPI’) on the principal amount outstanding.

Page 7 of 18




Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables.

b. Debt instrument at FVTOCI (Fair Value through OCI)
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and
(b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the OCI. However, the Group recognizes interest
income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss. On de-
recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from the
equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
income using the EIR method.

c. Debt instrument at FVTPL (Fair value through profit or loss)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria
for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). Debt instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit
and loss.

d. Equity Investments (Other than investments in subsidiaries)

All equity instruments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are
held for trading are classified as at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). For all other equity
instruments, the Group decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). The Group makes such election on an
instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI
to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the profit and loss.
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e. Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

S Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets and credit risk exposure.

For recognition of impairment loss on financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

2.2.4.2 Financial liability
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified and measure, at initial recognition, at fair value (i.e. net of directly
attributable transaction costs). The Group’s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other
payables. '

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

a. Financial liabilities at amortized cost

After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as
well as through the EIR amortization process Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally
applies to trade payables and other contractual liabilities.

b. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109.
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G

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated
as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These
gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the Group may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the
statement of profit or loss. The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through
profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at
a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

— how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s management;

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

— how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of
the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest.

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.
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225

2.2.6

22.7

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset
contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it
would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

— terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

— prepayment and extension features; and

— terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non- recourse features)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the
management/independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect
the current management estimate.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

Revenue
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2.2.7.1

2.2.8

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, incentives,
performance bonuses, price concessions, amounts collected on behalf of third parties, or other similar
items, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue from bundled contracts is recognized
separately for each performance obligation based on stand-alone selling price. Revenue is recorded
provided the recovery of consideration is probable and determinable.

Revenues from sale of services comprise income from container handling, storage and transportation
services provided to customers. Revenue from handling, storage and transport services are recognised on
completion of services i.e. when services are performed or delivered, as per the contracts entered with the
customers provided the consideration is reliably determinable and no significant uncertainty exists
regarding collection of the consideration.

Revenue from terminal access service is recognized on completion of access services provided to rail
operators for loading/unloading of the containers

Revenue from rental income from lease of plant and equipment is recognised on accrual basis as per the
contracted terms. The amount recognised as revenue is exclusive of tax and net of returns.

(a) Contract assets

A Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer.
If the establishment performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised from the earned consideration that is
conditional. The contract assets are transferred to receivable when the rights become unconditional.
Payment terms are contractually agreed with the customers.

(b) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Establishment
has received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the establishment
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Establishment performs under the contract.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the date that the Group’s right to
receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the
interest rate applicable.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as short
term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, etc. are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss or capitalized to respective fixed asset or capital work in progress, as the case may be in the
period in which the employee renders the related services. Such obligations are measured on an
undiscounted basis.

Post Employment Benefit
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Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into separate entities and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an employee benefits expense
in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period during which services are rendered by employees.

The Group pays fixed contribution to Provident Fund at predetermined rates to regional provident fund
commissioner. The contributions to the fund for the year are recognized as expense and are charged to the
statement of profit & loss.

Defined benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Group’s liability towards gratuity is in the nature of defined benefit plans.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated separately by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and
the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of
Indian government securities as at the reporting date that have maturity dates approximating the terms of
the Group’s obligations and that are denominated in the same currency in which the benefits are expected
to be paid.

The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When
the calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognised asset is limited to the total of any
unrecognized past service costs. Any actuarial gains or losses are recognised in OCI in the period in which
they arise.

Other long term employee benefits

Benefits under the Group’s compensated absences constitute other long term employee benefit.

Cost of long-term benefit by way of accumulating compensated absences arising during the tenure of the
service is calculated taking into account the pattern of availment of leave. In respect of encashment of
leave, the defined benefit is calculated taking into account all types of decrements and qualifying salary
projected up to the assumed date of encashment. The present value of obligations under such long-term
benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the
Projected Unit Credit Method as at period end.

2.2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

For assets that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to
disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
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money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested
individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the
“cash-generating unit”, or “CGU™).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses
recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of the assets of the CGU.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that
the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that
the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

2.2.10 Lease
Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. At
inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. At inception
or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other consideration required
by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those for other elements on the basis of
their relative fair values.

2.2.10.1 Accounting for leases- As a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land, building and plant and machinery.

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or

contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and

(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU™) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term
of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any
initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Page 14 of 18




Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments.
The lease payments are discounted using incremental borrowing rates. Lease liability and ROU asset have
been separately presented in the Balance Sheet.

Lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-

of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.

2.2.10.2 Accounting for leases- As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance

lease or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the
lease transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If
this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease. As part of this
assessment, the Group considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the
economic life of the asset.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Group’s net investment in
the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate
of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Rental income arising from operating leases is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in rental income in the statement of profit or loss, unless the increase is in line with
expected general inflation, in which case lease income is recognized based on contractual terms. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

2.2.10.3 Sale and lease back

The Company is applying the requirements for determining when a performance obligation is satisfied in
Ind AS 115 to determine whether the transfer of an asset is accounted for as a sale of that asset. If the
transfer of an asset satisfies the requirements of Ind AS 115 to be accounted for as a sale of the asset:

(a) the Company shall measure the right-of-use asset arising from the leaseback at the proportion of the
previous carrying amount of the asset that relates to the right of use retained by the seller-lessee.
Accordingly, the Company recognizes only the amount of any gain or loss that relates to the rights
transferred to the buyer-lessor.

If the fair value of the consideration for the sale of an asset does not equal the fair value of the asset, or if

the payments for the lease are not at market rates, The Company makes the following adjustments to
measure the sale proceeds at fair value: (a) any below-market terms shall be accounted for as a prepayment
of lease payments; and (b) any above-market terms shall be accounted for as additional financing provided
by the buyer-lessor to the Company.
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The Company measures any potential adjustment required, on the basis of the more readily determinable
of:

a) the difference between the fair value of the consideration for the sale and the fair value of the
asset; and
< b) the difference between the present value of the contractual payments for the lease and the present
value of payments for the lease at market rates.
2.2.11 Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax expense is recognized in the Statement
of Profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive
income or equity, in which case it is recognized in OCI or equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or

substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Deferred tax is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized directly in OCI or equity, in which case it is recognized in OCI or equity.

In the situations where any company is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income Tax Act, 1961

enacted in India or tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where it operates, no deferred tax
(asset or liability) is recognised in respect of timing differences which reverse during the tax holiday
period, to the extent the said company's gross total income is subject to the deduction

during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which reverse after the tax
holiday period is recognised in the year in which the timing differences originate. For recognition of
deferred taxes, the timing differences which originate first are considered to reverse first.

A deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized at the same time that
the liability to pay the related dividend is recognized.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) under the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognized as current
tax in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is
recognized as deferred tax assets only to the extent it is probable that the Group will pay normal income tax
during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set off against the normal tax
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2.2.12

2.2.13

2.2.14

2.2.15

liability. MAT credit recognized as deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
financial year.

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been
issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Operating segment

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of
the Group’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available. In accordance with
Ind AS 108, the operating segments used to present segment information are identified on the basis of
internal reports used by the Group’s management to allocate resources to the segments and assess their
performance.

The Board of Directors is collectively the Group’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker’ or ‘CODM” within
the meaning of Ind AS 108. The indicators used for internal reporting purposes may evolve in connection
with performance assessment measures put in place.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the
transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency
at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions are generally
recognised in statement of profit or loss,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.
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2.2.16

2.2.17

2.2.18

2.2.19

2.2.20

Investment Property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but
not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Upon initial recognition, an investment property is measured at cost. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The management believes a period of 30 years as representing the best estimate of the period over which
investment properties are expected to be used. Accordingly, the Group depreciates investment properties
over a period of 30 years on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land is depreciated over the lease term.
Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or loss.

The fair values of investment property are disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined by an
independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued.

Capital work-in-process

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and
direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended
use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Government Grant

Grants are recognized when there is a reasonable assurance that the Company has complied with the
conditions attached to them and it is reasonably certain that the ultimate realization and utilization will be
made. Grants which are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the company, with no future related costs are recognized
in statement of profit and loss in period in which they have accrued.

The grant received for the capital project which is under progress or capitalized, is reduced from capital
work in process or property plant and equipments.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Events occurring after the balance sheet date

Based on the nature of the event, the group identifies the events occurring between the balance sheet date
and the date on which the restated consolidated financial information is approved as ‘Adjusting Event’ and
‘Non-adjusting event’. Adjustments to assets and liabilities are made for events occurring after the balance
sheet date that provide additional information materially affecting the determination of the amounts relating
to conditions existing at the balance sheet date or because of statutory requirements or because of their
special nature. For non-adjusting events, the group may provide a disclosure in the restated consolidated
financial information considering the nature of the transaction.
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Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Limited (formerly known as Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Private Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in millions of 3, except share data and as stated otherwise)

3b. Capital work-in-progress

Particulars Building Plan.t & Railway siding Roads Total
machinery
Opening balance as at 1 April 2020 157.23 34.49 29.93 - 221.65
Addition 84.05 60.31 16.10 - 160.46
Capitalization (195.33) (63.38) (5.74) - (264.45)
Closing Balance as at 31 March 2021 45.95 31.42 40.29 - 117.66
Addition 138.31 10.14 13.90 - 162.35
Adjustment 6.83 - - 16.78 23.61
Capitalization (183.75) (24.38) (29.14) (16.78) (254.05)
Closing Balance as at 31 March 2022 7.34 17.18 25.05 - 49.57
Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule
(a) CWIP Ageing
Amount in CWIP
ewik Les;:::n 1 1-2years 2 -3 years More than 3 years Total
As at 31 March 2022
Project in progress 42.59 6.29 - 0.69 49.57
Project temporarily suspended - - - 2 -
Total 42.59 6.29 - 0.69 49.57
As at 31 March 2021
Project in progress 98.22 18.75 0.69 - 117.66
Project temporarily suspended - - - 5 =
Total 98.22 18.75 0.69 - 117.66

There are no capital-work-in-progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost as compared to the original plan. There are no
projects in the capital-work-in-progress where activity has been suspended.

Refer Note 29 (b) for capital commitments.




Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Limited (formerly known as Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Private Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in millions of ¥, except share data and as stated otherwise)

Je. Investment Property

i Particulars Leasehold land Building Total

Gross block as at 1 April 2020 47.53 199.23 246.76
Additions = 72.72 72.72
Disposals / Adjustments - - B

Gross block as at 31 March 2021 47.53 271.95 319.48
Additions 4,24 28.63 32.87
Disposals / Adjustments - - -

Gross block as at 31 March 2022 51.77 300.58 352.35
Accumulated Depreciation as at 1 April 2020 3.14 30.22 33.36
Charge for the year 0.84 19.01 19.85
Disposals - - -

Accumulated Depreciation as at 31 March 2021 3.98 49.23 53.21
Charge for the year 1.27 21.14 2241
Disposals % : Z

Accumulated Depreciation as at 31 March 2022 5.25 70.37 75.62
Net block as at 31 March 2021 43.55 222.72 266.27
Net block as at 31 March 2022 46.52 230.21 276.73

There are no such cases where title deeds of investment property are not held in the name of group.

3c (i) Information regarding income and expenses from investment property

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Rental income derived from investment property 61.83 48.04
Depreciation arising from investment property (22.41) (19.85)
Net income z}rising from investment property 39.42 28.19

3c(ii). Fair value of Investment property as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is based on the valuation report of
approved chartered engineer by Institute of Engineers India. However the valuer is not a registered valuer as defined under
rule 2 of Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017, The following table present fair value hierarchy of
Investment property.

Fair valuation of Investment Property as at 31 March 2022:

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Valuation technique
and key input

Building - - 275.30 | Refer note (a) below
Land - 345.86 - | Refer note (b) below

Fair valuation of Investment Property as at 31 March 2021:

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Valuation technique
and key input

Building - - 269.49 | Refer note (a) below
Land - 345.86 - | Refer note (b) below
Notes:

(a) The valuation methodology used by the Company for fair valuation of investment property (Building) is the depreciated
replacement cost method to value the existing built-up structures at the subject property. The main inputs used are covered
area, plinth area rate, age of building and estimated useful life.

(b) The fair valuation of investment property (land) is based on cirele rate for land from Department of revenue and land
reforms, Government of Bihar.




Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Limited (formerly known as Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Private Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in millions of 3, except share data and as stated otherwise)

3d Goodwill 3e Other intangible assets
Particulars Goodwill Particulars el ; Bl Lo
Software license

Gross block as at 1 April 2020 39.93 Gross block as at 1 April 2020 3.01 200.25 203.26

Additions - Additions 0.04 - 0.04

Disposals / Adjustments - Disposals / Adjustments - = E

Gross block as at 31 March 2021 39.93 Gross block as at 31 March 3.05 200.25 203.30
2021

Additions - Additions 5.54 - 5.54

Disposals / Adjustments - Disposals / Adjustments = e =

Gross block as at 31 March 2022 39.93 Gross block as at 31 March 8.59 200.25 208.84
2022

Accumulated amortisation 1 April 2020 Accumulated amortisation 1.22 51.05 52.27
1 April 2020

Charge for the year E Charge for the year 0.88 17.01 17.89

Disposals - Disposals = = -

Accumulated amortisation as at 31 - Accumulated amortisation as at 2.10 68.06 70.16

March 2021 31 March 2021

Charge for the year - Charge for the year 1.72 17.02 18.74

Disposals - Disposals - - =

Accumulated amortisation as at 31 - Accumulated amortisation as at 3.82 85.08 88.90

March 2022 31 March 2022

Net block as at 31 March 2021 39.93 Net block as at 0.95 132.19 133.14
31 March 2021

Net block as at 31 March 2022 39.93 Net block as at 4.77 115.17 119.94
31 March 2022

3d (i). Goodwill represents the cost of acquired business (Kanpur Logistics Park Private Limited) as established at the date of acquisition of the business in
excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities less accumulated impairment losses, if any,
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or when events or circumstances indicate that the implied fair value of goodwill is less than its carrying amount.
CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is indication for impairment. The financial
projections basis which the future cash flows have been estimated consider the increase in economic uncertainties due to COVID-19, reassessment of the
discount rates, revisiting the growth rates factored while arriving at terminal value and subjecting these variables to sensitivity analysis. If the recoverable
amount of a CGU is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

3d (ii). There has been no impairment loss recognised on goodwill generated on acquisition of Kanpur Logistics Park Private Limited.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the group’s operating divisions which represent the lowest level within the group at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

The entire goodwill of Rs. 39.93 millions has been allocated to the purchase of business Kanpur Logistics Park Private Limited. The recoverable amount of this
CGU is based on fair value less costs to sell, estimated using discounted cash flows. The fair value measurement has been categorised as Level 2 fair value
based on the inputs to the valuation technique used.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management's assessment of future trends in the relevant industries and have been assigned based on
historical data both from external and internal sources,

Particulars As at As at
31 March 31 March 2021
2022
Discount rate 12.00% 12.00%
Terminal value rate 1.00% 1.00%
Budgeted EBITDA growth rate 2.00% 2.00%
Budgeted revenue growth rate 2.00% 2.00%




Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Limited (formerly known as Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in millions of <, except share data and as stated otherwise)

(a) The discount rate is a post-tax measure estimated based on the historical industry average weighted-average cost of capital.

(b) The cash flow projections include specific estimates for 5 years and a terminal growth rate thereafier. The terminal growth rate has been determined based
on management’s estimate of the long-term compound annual EBITDA growth rate, consistent with the assumptions that a market participant would make.

(¢) Revenue and EBITDA growth rate has been estimated taking into account past experience.

3f. Intangible assets under development (refer note 1 below)

ERP (SAP) As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opening Balance 15.03 11.45
Add : Additions 2.85 3.58
Less : Capitalisations - -
Closing balance 17.88 15.03

Notes:
1. Ageing of intangible assets under develo

Ageing for the year ended 31 March 2022:

pment:

Amount in CWIP for the year ended 31 March 2022
Intangible assets under development | Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
Project in progress 2.85 3.58 5.90 5.55 17.88
Project temporarily suspended -
Ageing for the year ended 31 March 2021:
Amount in CWIP for the year ended 31 March 2021
Intangible assets under development | Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
Project in progress 3.58 5.90 - 5.55 15.03
Project temporarily suspended -
2. Details of intangible assets under development whose completion is overdue and has exceeded its planned cost:
For the year ended 31 March 2022:
Intangible assets under Xa be completed {n
£ Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
development®
year years
Project 1 (Implementation of SAP) 17.88 - - - 17.88
For the year ended 31 March 2021:
Intangibl — To be completed in
ntangibnle asseis under Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
development*
year years
Project 1 (Implementation of SAP) - 15.03 - - 15.03

*This is on account of implementation of SAP, The original planned date of capitalization for said project was 1 April 2019, however the same is delayed due
to pending configurations. Further implementation was delayed due to COVID-19. The project has been completed in the month of April 2022. The said
project is approved by board of directors for an amount of Rs 9.51 millions and an amount of Rs 8.37 millions is incurred in excess of its planned cost.




Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (Formerly known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in millions of ¥, except share data and as stated otherwise)

4

6A

Investments
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Financials assets
Non-current
Quoted investments (refer note below)
Valued at fair value through profit and loss
ABFL Short term fund (Total units as on 31 March 2022 880.974.196 (@ % 40.54, Total units 357 33.88
* ason 31 March 2021 880,972 (@ 38.45)
ABFL liquid fund (28,541,358 @ ¥ 343.1252) 9.79 -
Total 45.50 33.88
Aggregate cost of quoted investments 43.57 33.88
Market value of quoted investments 45.50 33.88
Investment carried at fair value through profit and loss 45.50 33.88
Notes:
1.Mutual fund investment has been made for creating the debt service reserve account pusuant to ccontract with Aditya Birla Group Finance for borrowing facility
availed, which is equal to 3 months of interest andprinciple amount. Accordingly, the investment in Mutual fund has ben classified as non-current.
The Group's exposure to credit risks related to financial assets carried at amortised cost are disclosed in note 37.
Other financial assets
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Non-current
Carried at amortised cost

Security depositsif 41.05 30.72

Bank deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months from the reporting date® 161.53 344.81

Interest accrued on bank deposits 3.90 4338

Receivables from others 0.93 1.57

Advances to employees 0.66 =
Total - 208.07 420.48
Current

Carried at amortised cost

Security deposits# 14,98 507

Bank deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months from the reporting date* - 1.52

Interest accrued on bank deposits - 6.51

Advances to employees 6.73 *

Other 0.60 (.68
Total 22.31 13.78

# As per the amendment notification dated 24 March 2021 issued by the Ministry of Corporate affairs security deposits has been reclassed from the Loan to the

other financial assets and same reclassification has been made in the previous year also. Refer note 43.

* Certain bank deposits are lien marked for issuance of bank guarantee.

The Group’s exposure to credit risks related to financial assets carried at amortised cost are disclosed in note 37.

Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax asset (net) (Refer note 6B)
Total

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Total

Asat
31 March 2022

Asat
31 March 2021

302.12 137.75
302.12 137.75
As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

7.05

7.05




Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (Formerly known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in millions of T, except share data and as stated otherwise)

6B Deferred tax assets / (liabilities)

A. Recognised deferred tax assets (net) As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Deferred tax assets arising on temporary differences on account of:

(a) Provision for employee benefit expenses 2.51 1.56
(b) Brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation 27.53 33.80
(c) Impairment allowance for financial assets 2.60 1.44
(d) MAT credit entitlement 171.51 89.02
(e) Difference in Right-of-use asset and lease liabilities 103.83 -
(P Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per the books of 3.39 0.21
accounts and Income Tax Act,1961.

(g) Expenses allowed on payment basis 19.83 19.83
Total (A) 331.20 145.86

Deferred tax liabilities arising on temporary differences on account of:

(a) Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per the books of (28.83) (7.73)
accounts and Income Tax Act,1961.
(b) Others (0.38) (0.38)
Total (B) (29.21) (8.11)
Recognised deferred tax assets (net) (A) + (B) 301.99 137.75
B. Recognised deferred tax liabilities (net) As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Deferred tax assets arising on temporary differences on account of:

(a) Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per the books of - (7.15)
accounts and Income Tax Act,1961.

Total (A) - (7.15)
(b) Expenses allowed on payment basis 0.13 0.10
Total (B) 0.13 (7.05)

Two subsidiaries are eligible for tax holiday under section 80IA of the income tax act, 1961. The Group had decided to avail tax holiday. The
Group is liable to pay income tax under the provision of minimum alternative tax as prescribed under section 1151B of the Income Tax Act,
1961. The group has recognised deferred tax with respect to these two subisidaries for the temporary differnces which will reverse after tax
holiday period.




Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (Formerly known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in millions of X, except share data and as stated otherwise)

. R — As at As at
Unrecognised deferred tax assets / (liabilities)** 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
|Deferred tax assets arising on temporary differences on account of:
(a) Provision for employee benefits 2.51 5.47
(b) Brought forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation* 173.76 206.69
(c) Difference between written down value of fixed assets as per the books of (2.12) (41.61)
accounts and Income Tax Act.1961.
(d) Difference in Right-of-use asset and lease liabilities - 43.35
(e) Impairment allowance for financial assets 1.37 27.33
(f) Impairment allowance for capital advances B 0.43
(g) MAT credit entitlement 30.75 80.16
206.27 321.82

* Carried forward losses as per Income Tax Act, 1961 will expire in Assessment year 2029-2030 (Financial year 2028-2029).

**The Holding Company and one of its subsidiaries had unabsorbed tax losses as per Income Tax Act, 1961 at the end of previous year. In
view of absence of reasonable certainty of realization of carry forward tax losses in the foreseeable future, deferred tax asset has not been
recognized .

Income taxes

The major components of income tax expense for the year are as under:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(i) Income tax recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Current Tax
In respect of the current year (47.53) 109.66
Adjustments with respect to previous year (5.94) -
Deferred Tax
In respect of the current year 171.43 (108.57)
Income tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 117.96 1.09
(ii) Income tax expense recognized in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax:
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (0.03) 0.08
Income tax (expense) recognised in other comprehensive income (0.03) 0.08
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Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (Formely known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in millions of %, except share data and as stated otherwise)

B. Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit for the year is as under:

Year ended Year ended

Effective tax reconciliation 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
(Loss) / profit before tax (94.69) 49.35
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate @ 29.12% (31 March 2021 29.12%) (27.57) 14.37
Tax effect of :
Effect of non-deductible expenses ’ 3.05 4.11
Effect of recognized tax defer tax related with prior years (101.66) (149.83)
Effect of MAT credit not recognised in current period : (0.94) -
Effect of tax holiday (after adjusting defer tax reversal during tax holiday period) (40.33) (38.99)
Effect of unrecognized defer tax asset ' 30.46 132.87
Effect of inter Company elimination 0.44 44.94
Effect of difference in tax rate of subsidiaries 12.63 (6.37)
Effect of prior year taxes 5.94 -
Total (117.96) 1.09

Tax expense as per Statement of Profit and Loss 117.96 (1.09)




& 8I°L (€0°L) 2 (80°'1) (96°L) (g-v) (39u) $3955€ XB] PALIJIP PIZIUS00IY
- 2 ST'L Er1L) - (00'1) (ST°'8) (@) 1810
sy00q J2d se uojerdadap
2 . SI'L (s1°L) - 001) (s1'8) 1310 1961 1PV Xe] dwodu] 1ad se uoperoaidap jo ssaoxy
$JO Junodde
uo SDUAIJIP mnmEE uo wm—_m_.. SanIIqel] xe) p.Lja(g
€0 - £0°0 01°0 = (60°0) 61°0 (V) =10
€10 = £0°0 01°0 : (60°0) 61°0 1yauaq ao4o[dwa 10y UOISIAOIL]
:J0 JUNOJIE
U0 §IIUAIIJJIP Suiunl) uo FuisLl §JasSe Xv) PALIJI(
120 ut ssof 40 Jyoad 1D0 ur sso] 10 jjoad
XB] pa.LIajap ul Xe) paLrIajap XE) paLiajap ui XE] pa.Liajap
ZTOTYdIB [€|  jo uoprod Jo uonprod 1207 Y21e] 1€ Jo uonprod Jo uonod 0Z0Z 11idy |
1B Sy paziufoday paziudoddy JBSY paziuSoaay paziusoddy jB Sy (39u) sanI[IqRI] XB) PA.IIAJaP PISIUS0IAI UI JUIWIAOR g
66'10€ (£0°0) LTI SL'LET 80°0 99°L01 20°0€ (g-V) (39u) 539558 X8} Pa.L19jap PIZIUB0IIY
(1z'67) £ (60°12) (1r-s) z (97’1 (+8'9) (9) 1®90],
(8€°0) - G (8€°0) - (L0°0) (1€°0) JETTITS)
syjooq Jad se uojeroaidap
(£8'820) = (60'127) (€L°L) ) (61°1) (£59) 1940 196] 1Y xe] swoou] 1ad se uoreroaidap jo ssaOXH
:JO Junodde
U0 $22u213J1p Funup uo SulsLl SIDIIGRI] XB) PALIdja(]
07°1€€ (€0°0) 9€°CRI 98°Ch1 80°0 76°801 98°9¢ (¥) 1e30L
£8°€01 < €8°€01 Z 2 z - SaLJI[IGRI[ 9SBA| PUE SJaSSE SN JO JYSLI UL SOUDIYL(
[SIL1 - 8578 20'68 . 9L°L8 97’1 SJUAWANIUD JIPAID [V
OQN - 0— — 1 = 1 = S]asse _.mmuﬁ.m_.:.w .:u.w uo:.m?c:m HEOE.:mn_E~
£8°61 ‘ * €861 E 9L°61 LO0 siseq pred uo pamo[e sasuadxy
[96] 10V Xe] 2woduj
6GEE - 81°€E 120 - 90’0 1o 12d se uo_um_uouumﬁ J2A0 s300q 1ad se ﬁomﬁm_o.ﬂ&uﬂ ...“_u SS20XYH
£S°LT : (LT9) 08'¢E ) (9z'1) 90°CE Uo1e1501dap PagIOSqRUN PUE SISSO] PIEAIO) 1YBNOIE
ST (€0°0) 860 9¢'] 80°0 91°[ Ze0 1yauaq 22A0[dwd 10 UOISIA0L]
O Junodde
uo SDULIJIp huﬂ..cn_—.:uu uo m_.__m_... §)I58E XB) pa.riaja(
DO m 550] Jo Jijoad 1D0 ut sso0] .10 yjoad
XE} paLidjap ui xej _u.uw_._u.u.u_u XE) paaiajap ul Xe) paliajap ’
CTOT YMe 1€ Jo :o_u.:x_ Jo :o_tcn 1707 Y2Ey 1€ Jo :cr._ca Jo :o_to-._ 00T __._m_< 1
]e m< ﬁuﬁ:mcauﬁ— —uumwzmaumﬂ- je sy pazi :mouuﬁ ﬂuu_cmcuuz je sy Cuﬂu §}I55E XE) paaa3jap ﬁuu_nwouuh uy JUAWRAOTN 'Y

(25101431410 PAIIS SO pup PIOP 24pYs Jdaoxa ‘3 0 SuoIIjIW W) SIUROWD []F)
7207 YHMEBA [€ PIPUa 1824 AY) 10) SIUIWIIE)S [EIIUBLUL PIJEPIJOSUOD Y] 0] SJON

(panul] 21pardy spoafoadp.fuy 3 sonsiSoT aunstig sp umouy .eunioy) paynuny spaaloadeayuy 2 soysidor] aunstig




Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (Formerly known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al cmmounts in millions of T, except share data and as stated otherwise)

7 Non-current tax assets (net)

Advance income tax (net of provision of tax ¥ 53.47, 31 March 2021 ¥ 109.66)
Total

7A Current tax liabilities (net)

Provision for tax (net of advance tax and tax deductible at source)
Total

8  Other assets

Non - current
Unsecured, considered good
(a) Capital advances
(b) Others
(i) Deferred rent
(ii) Prepaid expenses
(i1i) Advances to employees
Total -

Un. ed, considered doubtful

(a) Capital advances

Capital advances

Impairment allowance against capital advance
Total

Current
Unsecured, considered good
(a) Capital advances
{b) Advances other than capital advances
(i) Staff Imprest
(ii) Advance to supplier
(i11) Other advances
(iv) Advances to employees
(c) Others
(i) Deferred rent
(ii) Prepaid expenses :
(iii) Balances with government authorities
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Advances to suppliers
Less Allowance for doubtful advances

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

145.51 130.25
145.51 130.25
Asat As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

17.82 33.01
17.82 33.01
As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

100,22 104.11
0.01 0.01
0.85 1.34
- 0.59
101.08 106.05
4921 40.00

(49.21) (40.00)

101.08 106.05

- 0.90
1.01 g
22.86 28.42
14.27 9.74
_ 8.72
0.01 0.01
58.14 27.60

123.16 237.18

275 275
(2.75) (2.75)
219.45 312.57




Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (Formerly known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in millions of 7, except share data and as stated otherwise)

9 Trade receivables

Trade receivables#

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

(a) Unsecured, considered good (refer note below) 1,402.08 1,049.52
(b) Trade receivables - unsecured, credit impaired 82.41 98.94
(¢) Unbilled receivables, unsecured considered good 67.60 38.30
1,552.09 1,186.76
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (99.72) (114.40)
Total 1,452.37 1,072.36

# As per IndAS 115 "Revenue from contract with customers”, unbilled receivables, for which only the passage of time is required before payment is due needs to
be presented under the caption ‘Trade receivables’ which was classified under Other Financial Assets in previous years, The amount reclassified in financial year

2020-2021 amounts to ¥ 38.30 and amount reclassified in the financial year 2019-2020 amounts to T 20.53.

No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade receivables or
other receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

The Group's exposure to credit risks and loss allowances related to financial assets carried at amortised cost are disclosed in note 37.

Trade receivable ageing schedule is given below as at 31 March 2022:

Outstanding for the following periods from the date of invoice

Unbilled
receivables

Less than
6 months

6 months
to 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

(i) Undisputed trade receivables -
considered good

67.60

1,265.84

46,75

52.79

15.49

21.21

1,469.68

(ii) Undisputed trade receivables -
considered doubtful (Having significant
increase in risk)

(iti) Undisputed trade receivables - credit
impaired

1.02

8.99

298

69.42

82.41

(iv) Disputed trade receivables -
considered good

(v) Disputed trade receivables - considered
doubtful (Having significant increase in
risk)

(vi) Disputed trade receivables - credit
impaired

Gross trade receivables

67.60

1,265.84

61,78

18.47

90.63

1,552.09

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful
debts

(99.72)

Net trade receivables

1,452.37




Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (Formerly known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in millions of T, except share data and as stated otherwise)
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Trade receivable ageing schedule is given below As at 31 March 2021:

Outstanding for the following periods from the date of invo

ce

Unbilled
receivables

Less than
6 months

6 months
to 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

(i) Undisputed trade receivables -
considered good

3830

842.14

36.18

4522

53.38

72.60

1,087.82

(ii} Undisputed trade receivables -
considered doubtful (Having significant
increase in risk)

(iii) Undisputed trade receivables - credit
impaired

4.80

17.04

0.89

7227

98.94

(iv) Disputed trade receivables -
considered good

(v) Disputed trade receivables - considered| -

doubtful (Having significant increase in
risk)

(vi) Disputed trade receivables - credit
impaired

Gross trade receiavbles

846.93

40.12

62.27

54.27

144.87

1,186.76

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful
debts

(114.40)

Net trade receiavbles

1,072.36

Cash and cash equivalents

(a) Cash in hand

(b) Balances with banks;
(1) in current accounts

Total

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above

Bank deposits (original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months)*

Interest accrued on bank deposits
Total

* Includes margin money deposits/lien of ¥ 1,218.73 given as security to various Government authorities and banks.

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

1.75 2.37
161.50 162.63
163.25 165.00

As at As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

1,208.05 621.29
10.68 -
1,218.73 621.29




Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (Formerly known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in millions of T, except share data and as stated otherwise)
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a)

b)

c)

d)

Share capital

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Authorized:*

80,000,000 equity shares of 5 (31 March 2021: 27,000,000 210) 400.00 270.00

6,000,000 (31 March 2021: 6,000,000) cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares of 100 each 600.00 600.00
1,000.00 870.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

5.36.69,508 equity shares of T5 (31 March 2021: 26,834,754 of 210) 268.35 268.35

Total 268.35 268.35

* During the year ended 31 March 2022 there has been increase in the authorised equity share capital of the company from % §70 to ¥ 1000.

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the financial year

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
No. of Share T in millions No. of Share T in millions
Number of shares at the beginning 2,68,34,754 268.35 2,68,34,754 268.35
Add: Equity shares split during the year** 2,68,34,754 - - -
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Number of shares at the end 5,36,69,508 268.35 2,68,34,754 268.35

*%* During the Financial year 2021-22, Company has splitted equity share of Rs. 10 each to Rs. 5 per share.

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares, accordingly. all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s
residual assets. The equity shareholders are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time subject to payment of dividend to preference
shareholders. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to réceive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity
shares held. As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declaration received from shareholders
regarding beneficial interest the above shareholding represent both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

The Company has neither issued/ allotted any shares for consideration other than cash, nor has issued bonus shares during the period of five years
immediately preceding the balance sheet date. Further, no shares have been reserved for issue under options and contracts/ commitments for sales
of shares/ disinvestment by the Group.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Name of shareholders < -
No of equity Percentage No of equity Percentage
shares holding shares holding
India Infrastructure Fund 1@ 3,08.61,010 57.50% 1,54,30,505 57.50%
Sanjay Mawar 53.89.776 10.04% 26,94,888 10.04%
Amit Kumar 56,93.414 10.61% 28,46,707 10.61%
Rajnish Kumar 34.72.504 6.47% 17,36,252 6.47%

@Entity where control exists. IDFC Trustee Company Limited is the Trustee of India Infrastructure Fund I1.




Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (Formerly known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts in millions of 3, except share data and as stated otherwise)

(e)
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Details of share held by the promoters for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is as follows:

Name of Promoters

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

No of shares

% of shares

No of shares

% of shares

% change
during the year

Sanjay Mawar
Amit Kumar

Rajnish Kumar
Durgesh Govil

Other equity

Securities premium

Retained earnings

Capital reserve

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability
Total

(a) Securitits premium

Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year (i)

(b) Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Profit for the year

Less: Purchase of non-controlling interest
Add: Transfer from non-controlling interest
Balance at the end of the year (ii)

(¢) Capital reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year (iii)

(d) Remeasurement of defined benefit liability
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Addition during the year

Balance at the end of the year (iv)

Total (i) + (i) + (iii) + (iv)

Nature and; purpose of other reserves:

53,89,776
56,93,414
34,72,504
18,57,808

10.04%
10.61%
6.47%
3.46%

26,94.888
28,46,707
17,36,252

9,28,904

10.04% 0.00%
10.61% 0.00%
6.47% 0.00%
3.46% 0.00%

As at Asat

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

5,654.25 5,654.25
(2,112.71) (2.072.00)
0.15 0.15
(2.82) (3.51)
3,538.87 3,578.89
5.654.25 5,654.25
5,654.25 5,654.25
(2,072.00) (2,158.89)
77.75 86.89
(118.84) =
0.38 .
2,112.71) (2,072.00)
0.15 0.15
0.15 0.15
(3.51) (0.17)
0.69 (3.34)
(2.82) (3.51)
3,538.87 3,578.89

(a) Securities premium: Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

(b) Retained earnings: Retained earnings represent the amount of profit/(loss) as on the reporting date.
(¢) Capital reserve: Capital reserve represents the difference between the consideration paid and net assets acquired on business combination

under common control.

14 Non-controlling interest

Opening balance
Share in loss for the year

Share in other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

Loss on account of change in the shareholding

On account of dividend distributed to non-controlling interest

On account of issue of shares by subsidiary company to non-controlling interest
On account of issue of shares in step down subsidiary to non-controling interest

Closing Balance

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

55.94 110.59
(54.48) (38.63)
0.02 (0.20)
(42.41) :
- (16.00)
6.36 :
v 0.18
(34.57) 55.94




Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (Formerly known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in millions of Z, except share data and as stated otherwise)

15 Non - Current borrowings

Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Term loans secured
Term loans from banks (refer note 15A(1)) 524.63 462.46
Term loans from others (refer note 15A(2)) 1,465.66 1,234.35

1,990.29 1,696.81
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Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Limited (formerly known as Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Private Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in millions of 3, except share data and as stated otherwise)

16

(2)

16.2

16.3

16.4

Leases

Group as a lessee

The group's significant leasing arrangements are in respect of leasehold land for inland container deport, Plant

reachstakers, rakes and powerpack and building for office spaces.

The details of the right-of-use asset held by the Group is as follows:

and Machinery for

Leasehold land# Plant & machinery Building Total

Gross Balance as at 1 April 2020 645.70 1,296.71 - 1,942.41
Adjustments 0.47 - - 0.47
Additions 1,669.82 99.00 - 1,768.82
Derecognition - - - -
Gross Balance as at 31 March 2021 2,315.99 1,395.71 - 3,711.69
Gross Balance as at 01 April 2021 2,315.99 1,395.71 - 3,711.69
Adjustments 21.17 - - 21.17
Additions 24.77 42.15 7.08 74.00
Derecognition 424 - - 4.24
Gross Balance as at 31 March 2022 2,357.69 1,437.86 7.08 3,802.62
Accumulated amortisation for 01 April 2020 30.11 107.51 - 137.62
Amortisation for the year 226.34 163.46 - 389.80
Disposals - - - -
Accumulated amortisation for 31 March 2021 256.45 270.97 - 527.42
Accumulated amortisation for 01 April 2021 256.45 270.97 - 527.42
Amortisation for the year 341.38 177.83 1.34 520.55
Disposals 0.43 - - 0.43
Accumulated amortisation for 31 March 2022 597.40 448.80 1.34 1,047.54
Net block as at 31 March 2021 2,059.54 1,124.74 - 3,184.28
Net block as at 31 March 2022 1,760.29 989.06 5.74 2,755.09

# During the previous years the group has classified leasehold land under the property, plant and equipment which has been reclassified to Right-of-Use-
asset as per Ind AS-116 "Leases". The amount reclassed in the financial year 2020-2021 amounts to ¥ 233.20 and in financial year 2019-2020 amounts to

% 236.85.

The table below provides details for the changes in the lease liabilities

Opening balance

Adjustment during the year

Additions

Derecognition

Amounts recognized in statement of profit and loss as interest expense
Payment of lease liabilities

Closing balance

Bifercation of lease liability into current and non current portion

Lease liabilities
Current
Non-current

Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss

Amortisation of right-of-use assets
Interest on lease liabilities
Expenses relating to short term and low value leases (rent).

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

3,200.90 1,606.65
20.60 0.54
52.44 1,766.03
314.62 262.97
(579.33) (435.29)
3,009.23 3,200.90
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

3,009.23 3,200.90

397.57 276.32

2.611.66 2,924.58
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

520.55 389.80
314.62 262.97

9.45 8.07
844.62 660.84




Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Limited (formerly known as Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Private Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts in millions of Z, except share data and as stated otherwise)

16.5 The following table presents a maturity analysis of expected undiscounted cash flows for lease liabilities :

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Within one year 665.77 569.77
One to five years 2,483.52 2,770.64
Thereafter 1,390.78 1,619.15
Total lease payments 4,540.07 4,959.56
Imputed interest . 1,530.84 1,758.66
Total lease liabilities 3,009.23 3,200.90

16.6 Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Cash outflow for leases 579:33 435.29
16.7 Group as lessor
Operating lease

The Group has leased out a part of its building and certain office premises. All these arrangements are under short term cancelable operating leases of
less than 12 months.

Amounts recognised in the Statement of profit and loss
During the year ended 31 March 2022 the Group has booked lease income amounting to Rs 1.71 (for the year ended 31 March 2021 Rs. 4.08).

16.8 Sales and leaseback transaction:

During the financial year ended 31 March 2021 the Group had entered into sales and leaseback arrangements, for rakes owned and controlled by the one
of its subsidaries, to increase its liquidity. The company had sales proceeds of Rs. 124.81 (net) for the year ended 31 March 2021. The loss on sales and
leaseback transaction is Rs. 0.99 for the year ended 31 March 2021 (disclosed at Note No. 28).




Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (-ormerly known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in millions of ¥, except share data and as stated otherwise)

17 Current borrowings

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Loans repayable on demand
(1) From banks

(a) Cash credit facilities from banks (refer note 17B)

527.77 275.79

(2) From others (refer note 17C) 136.08 125.89
Current maturity of long term borrowings#

(i) Term loan from banks (secured) 170.10 157.78

(ii) Term loan from others (secured) 22.50 7.10

Total 856.45 566.56

# As per the amendment notification dated 24 March 2021 issued by the Ministry of Corporate affairs, the amount of current maturities of long term borrowings
has been reclassed from other financial liabilities to current borrowings and same adjustment has been made in the previous financial year also. Refer note 43,




Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Limited (formerly known as Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Private Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in millions of T, except share data and as stated otherwise)

17A (i) Reconciliation of trade receivables as per books of accounts and as reported in the quarterly returns/
statements.

The group has filed quarterly returns/statement of trade receivables for cash credit facilities availed from the banks
for the below mentioned periods and there are certain variances between the amount of trade receivables reported in
the quarterly returns and amount of trade receivables as per the books of accounts which are shown below:

Pristine Mega Logistics Park Private Limited

Amount as reported| Amount as per
Quarter ended date Bank Name in the quarterly books of Variance
returns/statements accounts
Financial year 2021-2022
Jun-21| HDFC Bank Limited* 1,266.63 1,106.96 159.67
Sep-21| HDFC Bank Limited* 1,035.11 1,046.08 (10.97)
Dec-21| HDFC Bank Limited* 920.71 899.24 21.47
Dec-21| IndusInd Bank Limited* 920.71 899.24 21.47
Mar-22| Indusind Bank Limited* -
Financial year 2020-2021
Jun-20| HDFC Bank Limited* 579.59 600.40 (20.81)
Sep-20| HDFC Bank Limited* 676.17 726.21 (50.04)
Dec-20| HDFC Bank Limited* 754.97 823.51 (68.54)
Mar-21| HDFC Bank Limited* 786.08 1,076.78 (290.70)

* The company submitted trade receivables balance outstanding up to 120 days for the cash credit facility availed
from HDFC Bank Limited and Indulsind Bank Limited, accordingly the amount of trade receivables as per books of
accounts is considered upto 120 days.

Reason for material discrepancies

The quarterly returns / statements of trade receivables submitted to the banks and amounts as per books of accounts
reflects material discrepancies which primarily relates to non recording of unbilled revenue / receivables, the
information of which was available to the Company post submission of quarterly statement. Further, the Company
was not subject to quarterly financial reporting requirement and therefore did not have a formal quarterly closing
process for its books of accounts.




Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Limited (formerly known as Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Private Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in millions of 3, except share data and as stated otherwise)

(ii) Reconciliation of trade payables as per books of accounts and as reported in the quarterly returns/
statements

The group has filed quarterly returns/statement of trade payables for cash credit facilities availed from banks for the
below mentioned periods and there are certain variances between the amount reported in the quarterly returns and
amount as per the books of accounts which are shown below:

Pristine Mega Logistics Park Private Limited

Amount as reported| Amount as per
in the quarterly books of

Quarter ended date Bank Name
returns/statements accounts

Variance

Financial year 2021-2022
Dec-21| Indusind Bank Limited 148.11 149.21 (1.10)
Mar-22| Indusind Bank Limited
Financial year 2020-2021

Jun-20| HDFC Bank Limited 200.80 241.78 (40.98)
Sep-20| HDFC Bank Limited 228.46 256.97 (28.51)
Dec-20| HDFC Bank Limited 259.99 254.97 5.02

Mar-21| HDFC Bank Limited 211.81 215.28 (3.47)

Reason for material discrepancies:

The quarterly returns / statements of trade payables submitted to the banks and amounts as per books of accounts
reflects material discrepancies as items of trade payables like provision and accruals are excluded while reporting to
bank,




Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Limited (formerly known as Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Private Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in millions of ¥, except share data and as stated otherwise)

17B Details of facilities availed from bank:

Sr No

Name of Bank

Nature of facility

Details of security/guarantee

Repayment, rate
of interest and

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

1. First Pari Passu charge by way of Annual Renewal
mortgage on immovable property situated at |or on demand
ICD Ludhiana, Punjab.
o ] 2 First Pari Passu Charge by way of
1 |HDFC Bank Limited Cash credit hypothecation of all movable assets of the 351.03 235.65
borrower, both present and future except
those hypothecated with other lenders.
3. First Pari Passu Charge on all receivables,
cash flows, bank accounts, TRA/escrow Upto 90 days and
accounts, DSRA etc. x e
line expiry linked
4.Pari Passu Charge on 30% pledge of the x;:»::?z?]me
total equity share capital and preference limits
shares of the Borrower, current and fully
2 |HDFC Bank Limited Working capital diluted, both present and future. 50.00 -
: demand loan
) 5. Irrevocable and unconditional corporate
guarantee of the Holding company (Pristine
Logistics & Infraprojects Limited), backed
by necessary board and other resolutions.
Fi ; h b ¢ Cash Credit: 1 Yr
irst pari p?ssu charge by way o MCLR payable at
hypothecation of all movable assets and :
s ; : monthly intervals.
3 |IndusInd Bank Limited Cash credit immovable assets of the Company, cash S 100.32 -
flows , bank accounts TRA , escrow account bl
DSRA etc P
2 h demand.
Commercial vehicle |Secured by hypothecation of commercial ~ |Cash credit 9.20%
i hicl linked with repo
4 |HDFC Bank Limited e D T P 26.42 40.14
commercial vehicle rate
overdrafi facility
Total 527.77 27519
Amount as per Note-17 527.77 275.79

17C Details of short term unsecured loans:

As at As at
ki Nutbe i henger 31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
1 |Hindustan Dock Yard Pvt. Ltd 58.20 53.84
2 |Aditi Jain 32.79 30.33
3 |Anand Kumar Jain 45.09 41.72
Total 136.08 125.89
Amount as per Note-17 136.08 125.89

Notes:

1. Loans mentioned in the Note No.17C are repayable on demand.




Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited (Formerly known as Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Private Limited)

Notes to the ¢

lidated financial stat

nts for the year ended 31 March 2022

(All amounts in millions of 3, except share data and as stated otherwise)

18

18.1

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
(v)

Trade payables

Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises (Refer note 18.1)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

434 s
280.77 28237
285.11 282.37

Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are provided as under for the financial year 2021-22 to the extent the Group

has received intimation from the "suppliers” regarding their status under the Act:

Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to each supplier at the end of each
accounting year,

Asat
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprise 4.14 -

Interest due on above 020 -
Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises % =
Development Act, 2006, along-with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during the period
Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond - -
the appointed day during the period) but without adding interest specified under the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Act, 2006
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - =
Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues - -
as above are actually paid to the small enterprises
Total 4.34 -
Trade payables ageging schedule for the year ended 31 March 2022:
Particulars Qutstanding for the following periods from the date of invoice

; Accruals | Less than 1-2years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
1 year years
(i) Undisputed dues - MSME 0.20 3.97 0.03 - 0.14 4.34
(i) Undisputed dues - other than MSME 58.91 200.51 10.05 1.03 10.26 280.77
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Other than MSME - - - = - =
Total 59.12 204.48 10.08 1.03 10.40 285.11
Trade payables ageging schedule for the year ended 31 March 2021:
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from the date of invoice
Accruals | Less than 1-2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 Total
1 year years

(i) Undisputed dues - MSME - - - - = z
(i1) Undisputed dues - other than MSME 87.94 163.74 18.71 373 8.25 282.37
(1) Disputed dues - MSME - - - 2 = ¥
(iv) Disputed dues - Other than MSME - - - - - -
Total 87.94 163.74 18.71 3.73 8.25 282.37
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19 Other financial liabilities

Non - current
Carried at amortised cost
Payable for purchase of property, plant and equipment
Interest acerued and due on borrowings
Security deposit
Other liabilities
Total

Current
Carried at amortised cost
Payable for purchase of property, plant and equipment*
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Interest accrued and due on borrowings
Security deposit
Retention money
Employee payable
Other liabilities
Total

*Includes payable to Government of Bihar amounting to Rs 115.80 (31 March 2021; Rs 115.80)

20 Provisions

Non - current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences
Total

Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences
Total

21 Other liabilities

Non - current
Contract liabilities
Total

Current
Statutory dues payable
Contract liabilities
Other liabilities

Total

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

- 14.31
0.32 0.43
15.87 12.68
- 0.40
16.19 27.82
140.69 184.22
2.76 0.10
0.05 0.82
1.49 3.56
6.41 1.94
21.17 12.93
15.67 28.28
188.24 231.85

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

16.16 13.40

7.14 6.25
23.30 19.65

332 291

1.65 1.34

4.97 4.25

As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
33.69 36.86
33.69 36.86
8241 73.25
50.29 24.45
13.08 12.60
145.78 110.30
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22

(a)

(b)

(c)

Revenue from operations

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Revenue from contracts with customers:
(a) Revenue from sale of services

Rail freight income 4,566.41 348822
Handling and transport services 2,176.45 1,886.43
Terminal access income 20.50 2420
Reefer escorting and survey income 0.35 -
Ocean freight charges 195.39 110.67
6,959.10 5,509.52
(b) Other operating revenue
Rental income 83.77 59,81
Total 7,042.87 5,569.33

Disaggregated revenue information

The Group has performed a disaggregated analysis of revenues considering the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenues. This includes disclosure of revenues by geography and timing of recognition.

Perfomance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations are summarised below:

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers.

Yearended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Revenue by time
Revenue recognised at point in time 6.959.10 5,509.52
Total 6,959.10 5,509.52

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
Ind AS 115 also requires disclosure of ‘revenue recognised in the reporting year that was included in the contract liability
balance at the beginning of the year’ same has been disclosed below:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Revenue recognized in the reporting year that was included in the contract 27.46 28.54
liability balance at the beginning of the year

Contract Balances

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers for which revenue is
recognized when the performance obligation is over. Advance collection is recognised when payment is received before
the related performance obligation is satisfied. This includes advances received from the customer towards providing of
services. Revenue is recognised once the performance obligation is met i.e. on completion of services.

Contract assets represents right to receive consideration from sale of services delivered but not billed.

Contract balances

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Trade recéivables (Gross of Allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 1,552.09 1.186.76

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (99.72) (114.40)

Trade receivables (Net of Allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 1,452.37 1,072.36
As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Contract liabilities
Contract liabilities 83.98 61.31
Total 83.98 61.31

Note: Considering the nature of business of the company, the above contract liabilities are generally materialised as
revenue within the same operating cycle.
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(d) Reconciliation of Revenue from sale of service with the contracted price:

Contracted price
Less; Trade discounts, volume rebates etc.
Sale of services (net)

(e) Movement of contract liabilities
Balance at the beginning of the period
Revenue recognised during the period
Accrual of contract liabilities
Balance at the end of the year

23 Other income

{a) Interest Income
(i) On bank deposits
(i) On financial instruments carried at amortised cost
(iii) On income tax refund
Gain arising on financial instruments carried at fair value through profit and
loss
Rental income (refer note 16.7)
Liabilities no longer required written back
Provision for doubtful debts written back
Income from Auction Sale
(Gain on lease modification
Gain on sale of property plant and equipment
Miscellaneous income
Total

24 Freight and handling expenses

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

7,050.31 5,582.34
7.44 13.01
7,042.87 5,569.33
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

61.31 59.39
(27.46) (28.54)
50,13 30.46
83.98 61.31
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

49.49 45,97
0.05 0.25
4.68 5.76
1.93 -
1771 4.08

30,00 -
267 -
7.47 -
274 -
0.03 -
7.16 133

107.93 63.39
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Handling and transport charges
Rail freight charges

Ocean freight charges

Total

25 Employee benefits expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus

Gratuity expense

Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

1,170.61 1,191.46
3,775.98 2,752.15
167.06 74.28
5,113.65 4,017.89

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Total

213.74 161.52
4.00 342
5.70 491

10.77 6.85

234.21 176.70
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26 Finance costs

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest
(i) on lease liability 314.62 262.97
(i) on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 22135 76.62
Interest on statutory dues 4.87 -
Bank guarantee commission 0.24 -
Interest on MSME party 0.20 -
Interest on unwinding of discount on security deposit 131 0.01
Total 542.59 339.60
27 Depreciation and amortization expenses
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment# 42561 268.90
Depreciation on investment property 2197 19.85
Amortization of intangible assets 18.74 17.89
Amortization of right-of-use assets# 520.55 389.80
Total 986.87 696.44

# During the previous years the group has classified leasehold land under the property, plant and equipment which has
been reclassified to Right-of-Use-asset as per Ind AS-116 "Leases". Therefore the amount of depreciation on the
leasehold land has been reclassed from depreciation on property plant, equipment to amortisation of right of use assets.

The amount reclassed in the financial year 2020-2021 amounts to ¥ 3.66.

28 Other expenses
Year ended Year ended
. 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Legal and professional charges (refer note 28.1) 62.33 26.15
Rent (refer note 16.4) 945 8.07
Vehicle running and maintenance 9.05 881
Travelling and conveyance 19.26 10.35
Corporate social responsibility expenses 27 2.05
Repairs and maintenance:
(i) Building 19.66 22.36
(i1) Others 282 0.63
Communication costs 6.20 588
Rates and taxes 10.61 484
Insurance 16.56 7.04
Loss on sale and lease back assets - 0.99
Power and fuel 31.93 26.46
Bad debts written off 4.54 7.59
Security expenses 32.56 19.28
Outsourcing cost - contractual labour cost 71.82 63.68
Business promotion expenses 493 1.45
Impairment allowance for non financial assets 9.21 =
Loss on sale of investment - 0.58
Miscellaneous expenses 38.90 33.63
Total 352.54 249.84
28.1 Payment to auditors
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Statutory audit fees 5.94 4.86
Other services - 0.02
Reimbursements of expenses 0,13 0.14
Total 6.07 5.02
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29

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
(i)
(ii)

30

Commitments and contingencies

Pursuant to recent judgement by the Hon'ble Supreme Court dated 28 February 2019, it was held that basic wages, for the purpose of provident fund, to
include special allowances which are common for all employees. However, there is uncertainty with respect to the applicability of the judgement and year
from which the same applies. Owing to the aforesaid uncertainty and pending clarification from the authorities in this regard, the group has not recognised
any provision for the years prior to 28 February 2019. Further, management also believes that the impact of the same on the group will not be material.

On the basis of current status of the above cases and as per internal evaluation, the Group believes that the probability of liability arising on the Group is
low.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed which is of capital nature (net of advances) and which have not been provided for in the financial
statements, amounts to 2 44.41 (31 March 2021: Nil).

Litigation against our Company- Material civil proceedings:

Spark Capital Advisors (India) Private Limited (“Claimant™) initiated an arbitration proceeding against our Holding Company (“Respondent™) for
recovery of a sum of Rs 47.82 along with interest thereon, The Claimant is a provider of investment facilitation services, and acts as a conduit between an
investor and a company. In order to fund its capital requirements, the Respondent proposed to hire the services of the Claimant and accordingly. an
engagement letter dated November 11, 2016 was entered into between the Claimant and the Respondent, forming a binding brokerage service contract
(“Service Contract™). The Service Contract contemplated two kinds of investors: (i) investors identified by the Claimant and introduced to the
Respondent; and (ii) other investors. As per the Service Contract, success fee was to be paid to the Claimant in the specific event of the Respondent
entering into a term sheet with any investor identified by the Claimant. On March 28, 2018, the Respondent identified and secured an investment from [IF.
I to the extent of ¥ 478.22 which as per Respondent, falls within the second category of ‘other investors’, Further, the Claimant sought a discovery of
transaction documents to raise additional claims, The Claimant has prayed for an equity success fee, along with an interest at the rate of 18% per annum
from the date of execution of the non-binding term sheet entered into by the Company with the IIF-II, or from the date of receipt of the investment,
whichever is earlier. The Respondent has refuted the claims since the transaction was consummated well after the expiration of timelines of the Claimant’s
engagement. Further, the Respondent has alleged that the Claimant abandoned this investment opportunity and the Respondent had to start afresh, and
negotiate and close the transaction with IIF-I1 unilaterally, The matter is currently pending before the arbitral tribunal.

Tax matters
There are demands for the Assessment years 2018-2019 and 2020-2021 amounting to ¥ 33.68 against the Company. Considering the facts of the litigation,
management expects a remote possibility of outflow of funds in this matter.

In regard to demand of ¥ 14,74 raised by the Office of Goods and Service Tax (GST), Khagaria, Bihar on one of its subsidiary Company. Considering the
facts of the litigation, management expects a remote possibility of outflow of funds in this matter.

Contingent liabilities, not acknowledged as debt, for the Holding Company:
Particulars As at As at
: 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Income tax matters for assessment year 2017-18 in respect of the which appeals 1.88 1.88

have been filed

Total 1.88 1.88
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31 Employee benefits

(A) Defined contribution plans:

Provident fund
The Group makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of employee's salaries, in respect of qualifying

employees towards provident fund which is a defined contribution plan. The Group has no obligations other than to make
the specified contributions.

During the year the Group has recognized the following amounts in the statement of profit and loss:-

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Employer’s contribution to Employees State Insurance 0.40 0.43
Employer’s contribution to Employee Provident Fund . 5.30 4.48
Total 5.70 4.91

(B) Defined benefit plan:

(i) Gratuity
The Group has a defined benefit plan that provide gratuity. The gratuity plan entitles all eligible employees who has
completed five years or more of service to receive one half month's salary for each year of completed service at the time of

retirement, superannuation, death or permanent disablement, in terms of the provisions of the payment of Gratuity Act or as
per group's scheme whichever is more beneficial.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity and the
amounts recognised in the Group's financial statements as at balance sheet date:

Expense recognised in statement of profit and loss:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current service cost 2.83 2.53
Past service cost 0.07 022
Interest cost 1.10 0.67
Net benefit expense 4.00 3.42

Balance sheet

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

(a) Net defined benefit liability
Gratuity (unfunded) 19.48 16.31

(b) Classification of defined benefit liability in current and non-current

Current 332 291
Non-current 16.16 13.40

(¢) Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Experience (gains) / losses (0.34) 1.95
Gain from change in the demographic assumptions - (0.15)
(Gain) / Loss from change in the financial assumptions (0.40) 1.82

Remeasurements on liability (0.74) 3.62
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(2)

(d) Changes in present value of the defined benefit obligations are as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligations

Current service cost

Interest cost

Past service cost

Re-measurement (gains) losses in OCI
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial
assumptions
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic
assumptions
Experience adjustments

Benefits paid

Closing defined benefit obligations

(e) The financial (per annum rates) and demographic assumptions used to determine defined benefits obligations

are as follows:

Discount rate
Salary escalation rate
Rate of attrition (in %)
(a) Up to 30 Years
(b) From 31 to 44 years
(c) Above 44 years
Retirement age (in years)
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

16.31 9.93
2.83 2.53
1.10 0.67
0.07 0.22

(0.40) 1.82

‘ (0.15)

(0.34) 1.95

(0.09) (0.66)

19.48 16.31

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

6.80%
3.5%-8%

3.00% - 16.23%
2.00% - 16.23%
1.00% - 16.23%
58
100% of IALM
(2012-14)

6.80%
3.5% - 8%

3.00% - 16.23%
2.00% - 16.23%
1.00% - 16.23%
58
100% of IALM
(2012-14)

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in the actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Senstivity analysis

Discount rate and future salary escalation rate are the key actuarial assumptions to which the defined benefit obligations are
particularly sensitive. The following table summarizes the impact on defined benefit obligations as at 31 March 2022 and 31
March 2021 arising due to an increase/decrease in key actuarial assumptions by 50 basis points:

March 31 2022 March 31 2021

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (0.5% movement) (0.61) 0.65 (0.44) 0.46
Salary escalation rate (0.5% movement) (0.44) 0.46 0.40 (0.39)

The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in above assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. The changes
in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to
significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting year) has been applied, as has been applied when calculating the
provision for defined benefit plan recognised in the Balance Sheet.

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change due to these not calculated.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior years.
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(h) Expected maturity analysis of gratuity in future years

Lessthan 1 Between 1-2  Between 2-5 Over 5 years Total
year years years
As at 31 March 2022 332 2.00 7.35 6.81 19.48
As at 31 March 2021 293 1.27 3.69 8.42 16.31

Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending 31 March 2023 are Rs 3.32.
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period ranges between 5.06
to 28.50 years (31 March 2021: 5.16 to 20.07 years).

(i) Risk exposure:
1) Changes in discount rate
A decrease in discount yield will increase plan liabilities,

2) Mortality table
The gratuity plan obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in life expectancy will result in
an increase in plan liabilities.

(C) Other long term employee benefits plan
Other long term employee benefits plan comprises of compensated absences

The Group operates compensated absences plan (earned leaves), where in every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent
to 15 days salary for every completed year of service which is subject to maximum of 45 days accumulation of leaves. The
same is payable during early retirement, withdrawal of scheme, resignation by employee and upon death of employee. The
salary for calculation of earned leave are last drawn basic salary.

Balance sheet

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

Compensated absences

Non current 7.14 6.25

Current 1.65 1.34
8.79 7.59
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32 a) Names of related parties and related party relationship

Name of related Parties Relationship
India Infrastructure Fund I1 Entity where control exists

b) Key Management Personnel

Name of related parties Designation

Amit Kumar Director

Sanjay Mawar Director

Rajnish Kumar Director

Narayanan Gopalakrishnan Director

Mayank Bansal Director

Milind Mukund Joshi Director

Satishkumarreddy Mulamreddy Independent Director (Appointed on 16 June 2021)
Nandan Chopra Chief Financial Officer

P.K. Mishra Company Secretary

¢) Transaction with related parties for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is as follows:

Key managerial personnel/ relatives

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
A) Transaction during the year with key managerial
persons
i) Short term employment benefits
Rajnish Kumar 9.20 6.49
Amit Kumar 9.20 6.49
Sanjay Mawar 9.20 6.49
Satishkumarreddy Mulamreddy 1.90 -
Nandan Chopra 5.18 -
P K. Mishra 5.55 3.93

ii) Reimbursements

Rajnish Kumar 2.18 1.61
Sanjay Mawar 221 1.64
Amit Kumar 1.98 1.43

iii) Other financial asset employee advance repaid
Rajnish Kumar (2.25) (0.75)

B) Amount receivable as at the year end
Rajnish Kumar - 225

C) Amount payable as at the year end

Rajnish Kumar 1.29 0.46
Sanjay Mawar 227 0.80
Amit Kumar 2.08 0.73

As the liabilities for gratuity and compensated absences are provided on actuarial basis and calculated for the Company as a
whole, the said liabilities pertaining specifically to KMP's are not known and hence, not included in the above table.
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33

Earnings pér share

Net profit as per statement of profit and loss for computation of
EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding in
calculating Basic EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding in
calculating diluted EPS (refer note 2)
Nominal value of equity shares (in ¥)
Earnings per equity share (in %)

-Basic

-Diluted

Notes:

Year ended
31 March 2022

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2021
(restated EPS) (note 1) (before restatement)

7775

5.36,69,508

5,36,69,508
5

1.45
1.45

86.89 86.89
5,36.69,508 2,68,34,754
5,36.69,508 2,68,34,754

5 10
1.62 324
1.62 324

In the current year there has been split up of equity shares from face value of Rs 10 to Rs 5 per share, due to which previous year earnings

per share has been restated.

There are no dilutive instruments with the group.
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34 Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS)-108: "Operating Segments"

The Group is set-up with the object of, inter-alia, rendering end to end logistic solutions to the customers, This is the only
activity performed and is thus also the main source of risks and returns. Accordingly, the Group's activities/business is
reviewed regularly by the Board of Director of the Companies from an over all business perspective. Thus, the Group has
only one operating segment, and no reportable segments in accordance with Ind AS 108.

Segment reporting - Geographical Information

Geographical information analyses the group’s revenue and total assets in the Company’s country of domicile (i.e. India) and
other countries. In presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been based on the geographical location of
the customers and segment assets have been based on geographical location of assets.

Segment information for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021:

Revenue

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
India 6,506.36 5,191.14
Nepal 536.51 378.19
Total 7,042.87 5,569.33
2. Total assets
As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

India 9,018.62 8,583.93
Nepal 1,325.10 1,536.68
Total _ 10,343.72 10,120.61




1047 %00°001 PLO 2%00°001 LTET %00°001 SOTLL'E %00°001 1e10],
= = - = - - - - palIIT 2BALL] YIBd 1aiiea] B3a ypedep
BIpuy uf
Auedwod aenossy
(es'1) %6E 9 2 %000 (gg'1) %09'9- (0g°s66) %8E'9T- uoHEuIIfa [B10],
(8s°zL) % E T0E- i %000 (gszL) %S6'11E- (99°vE1) LS '€ “pr 1ad HodAicy £ajjeA sunstig
gipu] apIsINQ
(69°09) %18°T5L- - 20070 (69°09) %58 09Z- (L6'8p) %0€'T- panun ajeatid spoafordeljuy uplsnpury sunstig
[CAREY! %1 t'9t $0°0 %98 (81°11) %b0' 8k 15901 %I8'T PRI 31BALL] Y1 POO.] BFRN aunstid
(s11) %8L 00 %91°C (VARY %806~ £9°01 %870 pajI jeALd s201aa§ Woddng Fogoa L
(9170} %990~ = %000 (91°0) %890~ (o1} %E0°0- SJBALLd S[BUILLIZ ], 7 SINSIBO[RLU] ISESYLION
(rz'0) %01~ g %000 (¥Z'0) %501~ (og'1) %00~ paw 2jBAL] Y18 SONSITOT BM[BIN aUNSU
Pr8L %TL9TE LED %9016 LOSL % pS SEE 8P EPE 2%01'6 PAUWIT 21BALL] YIed SONSIZOT EFp 2unstg
P8¥1 90819 90°0 %LEL 8L ¥l %15 €9 12811 %elE PN 3JBALL] SIMIONISEIU] YpeSe 2unsd
TEIEl %00 L¥S or'o 248L €S T6°0E1 %89°T9S LUESY %I0°T1 PN S1BALL] YIed sonsifoT mduey
008 %EEEE - %000 008 2%6€ FE 788 %ET0 panwI 2JBALLJ SANSIFOT XLIBLOPU]
Bipuj uf
sauBIpISqNg
(Lo'19) 2%0b FET- (s10) %6561+ (£6'09) %98'19Z- TTEl6'e 2%EL'E01 pauwiy spafoideru] 7 sansifo] aunsud
Auedwo)) Smpoy
Junowy PAIBPIOSUOD JO o, §Y junowy PR)EPIOSTOD JO o, §Y 3 v PIIEPI[OSUOD JO o, S 1 v PAIBPIIOSUOD JO v, S
(1D0) (sanpIqer| [B)0 [ -533sse [EJ0L) )
) . - aspadiayua ay) Jo awey
(1) awodur aasuayaadwod [ejo ], uy 21eys | awodu assuaaadmod 130 ur 2IBYS XE} Jajje ssof pue jyoxd up aaeys S)ISSE JaN
7707 YIERN [€ PApua 1834 a1} 104

‘SUALRNEIS [BlouRuL pajepijosuod ap Suuedard apgm sasudiaua Jo ‘gz oy sauedwo) ai) o [[] 2npayas 1apun paimbal se ‘uoyeULIOUL [BUOHIPPY =5

(astmaayIo pajgs B puy pjop adoys jdasxa 'y fo suetjjme ut smown 1y}
ZZ0Z YMEIY € PIpua 1eak a1) 0] SJUIWIIL)S |BIIUEUL PIJEPI[OSUOD ) 0] S3J0N
(Papnary 2ypard ] S10al04dDLU] pup SIUSITOT AUNSH SO umouny ALouwc)) payiuiy s1aafoadeagu] pue so1sis0] aunsilg



POPF %001 [(ZX3)] %001 9T'8F %001 81°€06'E %001 E0L
- - - - - - - - pajiur] ajeALd jIed Jayiea edapy ypede

INBII0SEY
(oz¥s1) %06 ChE- 2 95000 (oz'¥s1) %P9'61¢€- (6Z'¥08) %19'0T- UONBUILINA [BIOL
(9L°v8) %L8°681- - (9L+8) %E9°SLI- (9z'+8) %091 T [edaN “piT 1ag podAiq A3[eA 2unsud
ugIpuy Jo InQ
(LgLg) %E8 78" = %000 (L8'Lg) %Ly 8L (o1} %E0 0 pamury ajeang sjoafordeyul uelSnpulH aunstig
(Losy) %96 001~ 200 2550 (60°s¥) %EY €6 S9LIT %I0°€ DPaUWIT SIBAL 1B POOJ BRI 2UNSL
(95'€) %l6 L (zro) %IE'E (FtE) 9%EL'L- 6LT1 %0E0 paju 2jeAlld $391A12§ poddng Sopyoa L
S parnuny seALd S[EUILLA ],
(zoo) %00 = %000 (zo0) %b0'0- (s6°0) %00~ BUBIUPNT UNSLI SB UMOWY ASULIOS) Pojiui]
2NEALL] S[EUILIA ] 79 SOUSITO[ELU] 1SEYUON
(F0°0) 2%60°0- = %000 (#0°0) %800 (1) %E0°0- Il AJBALL 1B SOUSIZO] BM[BIN SUNSH]
PL6T1 %¥9°06T (9T'1) %I8FE 00°1€1 %Sh 1LT v0°S9T %6L9 paywI AjRALL 1B d 5aNsIS0T BFAJ sunsug
8T 2409 (£1°0) %65°€ L6T %EL'9 9€'E01 %€9°T paNWIT S1RALL] AIMINISELU] Ypeiey sunstd
6T 8F1 %61 TEE (8'1) %88°0F LL6Y1 %PE01E 98'1Z¢ %ST] paywr ajeALld yred sousigor] nduey|
(LLw) %6901~ - %00°0 (LLy) %886~ %80 %2070 PAIJWIT AIBALL SINSIFOT XLRIMOPU]
uglpug
salIpIsqng
6 %b801T (s9°0) 9%96'L1 LLPE %LE°061 1€PL6'E %Z8°101 panwry siafordeyuy  sousiSor] aunsig
Auedwoyy Buipjoy
1D 180 DO B0y, z §s0] pue jyoad S]ASSE 12U N
1 v PIAEPIOSUOD JO %, Y | ) 4 PAAEPIJOSUOD JO %, SV ) v PAEPIOSUOD JO %, SY unowy PAIEPIIOSUOD JO %, S
1D0) (sanpIqel| [€10 L -S)3S5E |10 )

(1D) 2woduy aalsuayaidwod [BJ0], Ul AIRYS | AW0IUT AAISUIYIAdW0d 12110 Ul J4eYS XE} 421)8 §50] pue Jgoad m aaeysg SJISSE 1aN

1207 YME [£ Papu2 J83A 1) 10 astudiagua ayg Jo awey]

fasimaayio pajpis §o pup piop aanys jdadxa ‘3 Jo suoljjiu i sienown §jy)
ZZ0Z Y2HBJA [€ PIPUd 183 21} 10] SIUIWIIE)S [BIIUEUL) PAIRPIOSUOD DY) 03 SIJON
(pamary awatdy siaafordvafi pup so1stSo7 aunst g s umouy Auauniof) panunr s1vafoadesguy pus sonsiSo] unsig



- - - - IS'SHE'D = % S IS'SHE'9 B0,
2 e vT'881 - z vT'881 sanIIqer] [eoueLY JAYI0 (A1)
= . 11°$8¢ 3 . 11°68C sa|qeded ape1], (111)
. # LS'L6E = 7 LS'L6E samiqer] asea ] (1)
- " SH'9s8 c : SP9¢8 sgurmouxog (1)
juanny)
- C 6191 = = 6191 sanijIqer] [eroueuy oo (1)
= - 99'119°C = = 99'119°C saniqer] asea] (1)
> % 62066°1 : : 670661 s3uimouiog (1)
JRLINY-U0N
sanIjiqel| [erouBuLy
0S°Sp 0S°Sh ETOIT'E a 0S's EL'90'E [ELNT
2 2 1€TT 2 2 1€'7C S19SSE [EIOUBLL) JaylQ) (AT)
aA0qe sjuaeanba ysed pue ysed
= - €L8ITT E ¢ €LBITI uey) Jayio saduereq yueg (111)
= 5 STE91 s = STE91 sjuefeamnba yse pue yse) (1)
= - LETSH' 2 - LETSY'T saqeAra0a1 9pel, (1)
LNy
: - - 2 L0'80T = . L0'80C sjasse [eloueuly QO (1)
0§°St E 2 0SSt 0S°St = 0S°S¥ , sjuatmsaauy (1)
JULIND-UON]
$JISSE [RIdUBUL]
w0l
anjea Surdiied aatsuaydadwod Jayjo  ssof pue jyoad 1502
[e01, € [9A] 124 1 [9A97] 810, 1502 1Y ySnoay) anjea J1e]  YSnody) anjeA Qg pasiaowy

:SMO[[0] SE SI 7Z0T YOIBA [ £ T& SB 211032180 £q SjuaWwniisul [elouRUl] Jo anjea Juldimed oy,
- £1030180 AQ SHUIWNIISUI [BIDUBUL] ~ 9¢
(2514210 PRIDIS SO PUp DIDP 240YS 1dadxa ‘3 fo suoijiu Wi Sjunowp jjy)

ZZ0T YMEBJA [€ PIPU2 1834 3y} 10J SJUIUIIIE]S [RIDUEUL} PAJBPI[OSUOD Y} 0] SJON
(Panur a1patig s1oafoadpafur pup sonsiSoT aunstig} so usowy Ajiaunio,f) paywr sypafordeiyuy pue sopsigory aunstig



- & = a5 1£'900'9 = - - 1€£'9009 1BI0L
% ? f . S81ET 3 - é €8I€T SanIIqe]] [eroueuy 1RyIQ (A1)
- - - - LET]T - - z LETRT sojqeAed apei, (111)
- . e . ZE9LT = . s TE9.LT sanifiqery asear] (11)
s - - “ 9$°995 * “ g 95'99¢ s3uimonog (1)
JuLIND
= “ - = T8'LT : 3 " 8'LT sani[Iqer] [BoURUY YO (H1)
- - = s 8SHT6T = = 2 8SHT6T sanifiqel] asea (1)
a = . - 18°969°1 - - - 187969°1 sfurmouog (1)
JULIND-UON
Sa|IqEl] [BldUBUL]
88°€E - & 88°EE 6L'9TET = = 88'EE 16°'767'C [E10]L
= - = : sLel - = T BLEL SJ9SSE [BrouBULy 1oyl (A1)
) 2A0qQE Sjua[eAInba YSed pue Ysed
“ - = “ 67179 - = 67129 By} 1030 SaoUE[Rq ueg (111)
= = = - 00591 = % i 007691 sjuaeAmnba ysey pue ysed (1)
E - - - 9E£TLOT - - i 9€'TLO’1 sa[qeAtacal apel, (1)
juaLIn)
- = - = 80T = 5 = 8¥°0Cv sjosse [eloueuly QO (1)
88°€E = = 88'EE 88'¢E 2 - 88°ce - sjuaunsaauy (1)
JUALIND-UON]
§JISSE [BIOURUL]
Jwoaul
anjea gulfLied aarsmaraadwiod Jaypo  ssoj pue jjoad 1502

B30 L, £ P 19497 [ 19497 18301,

1500 1Y ySnoayy anjea e YSnody) anjeA LB  PIspIOWY

4 :SMOJ[0] SB ST [Z0T ‘1€ YoIRJA 18 Se saLio8ojen Aq sjuswmusur [e1dueuly Jo anjea Suidies ay |,

(astaLiaijo paivjs Sp pup DIDP A4pYS 1daoxa ‘3 fo Suolju U SIUROWD jiy)
7707 YRl 1€ PIpud 1eak Y] 10] SIUIWIIEIS [RIDUBULY PIIRPIJOSUOD N} 0) §3JON]
(Paruit] 21aLtg S1oaloadnifuf pup s1SIS0T aulSLg} S umouy j4auiio.y) paiwrry spxafoadesyuy pue sousIS0] Julstig



- Sunodai Apreak s Auedwoy

o) M aur] Ul Tedk KI9AD 90UO ISBI] 1B WE3] UOHEN[BA PUE JUSWOSEURIA JOIUSS U] USAMISQ PIAY I8 SINSAI PUB UOHEN[EA UO SUOISSNOSI(] ‘JUSWAZRURIA JO[UAS 2y} O} Apoanp suodar wea) siy],

‘san[eA Irej € [249] Surpnpour ‘sasodind Sunodar ferouruy 10§ parmbai sanIqer] U §19SSE [RIDURUL] JO SUONEN[EA AU} StLIojsad jey) wres) € sapnjoul Kuedwon) Supjoy 2y jo jusunedsp souruly ay |,
HIOMIWEL] UOEN[BA  §'9€

“POLIAW MO YSED PaJunodsIp oy Suisn SJUSWINIISUL [eroueulf Suilrewal aiy Jo anjea arej (1)
'2pN[OUI SJUSWINIISUS [BIOUBUL] AN[EA 0} pasn sanbruyoa) uonen[ea oyady

an|eA J18j JUIULIIAP 0 pasn anbiuyaay uonenes $'9¢

1207 Y9I 1€ PUB 7Z0T YOTRAl [ £ PAPUS SIBAK o) J0J € [9A] PUB T [9AT T [9A27] USBMID] SIQJSURI) OU U3 SBY 212y ],

88°€E - y 88°EE [BI0L
88° €L 2 % 88°EE punj [ENINu U JUIUNSIAL]
[E10L € [9A3 ] 719437 119497 §J9SSE [RIDUBUL]

1207 YOHBIN [€ Papua aeak a1 10 siseq SULLINIIL B U0 IN[EA J1EJ JB PIINSEIU SIN[IGRI] PUEB SJISSE [BIDURUL} SISLIEWWNS | qE) SUIMO[[O) YL,

0s°Sh - 3 4 1Ejo L

05° S = = 0<°Sh punj [emnu ul JULUISIAU]
[e10L € 19497 7 19A9 T I 134377 S]OSSE [EIoUBUL]

17207 YOIRIA T€ PApUd deak ay) 1oj siseq SULLINII B U0 IN[BA AIEJ JB PIINSLIU SIN[IGRI| PUB §JISSE [RIOUBULY SISLIBWWNS A qE) SUIMO[|0f YL,

"BIEP Jo3IBL 3[QR[IBAR UO Paseq A2() 21 JOU JUSWINISUL SUIES AU} Ul SUOHOIBSURI] J93JBUI JUSLIND 9[qeAIasqo woly saotid £q
pauoddns Joyyou e jey) suondwinsse uo paseq [2pow uonen[eA e Suisn ped Ul 10 S[0YM Ul PAUIULIAISP 218 San[ea Jreq “(sindul 2[qeAIdsqoun) Bjep e 9[qeAISsqo U0 paseq jou are sinduy - £ (9a27  (9)
“(so0ud woiy paariap ') Aoamput Jo (ssoud se -a'1) A[JoauIp JoyHa ‘KITIqeI] 10 JOSSE ) 10 2[qRAISSqO IR TRyl | [9A37] UIYIM papnjout saotid pajonb uey) 1oyio are sinduy - 7 12497 (q)
"SONIIGEI] 10 SIASSE [EINUap] 0] SieyIew aanoe ut (pajsnipeun) saouid pajonb are sinduy - | (2497 (8)

:5[9A9] 22111 SULMO[O] S} JO SISISUOD PUB S[qRAIISOUN 10 GBAIISGO IS 1B JBTf) SN[BA ITB] 2IMSBOUI O} Pasn I8 Jey) sanbiuyoa) uonen[ea 0} sindur uo paseq 1 AYdIBISIY dN[BA JIBf SU L

Aydaeaary anfea 1igg  €9¢

"PAINIAS 10 PIAIDAI 3q AJ[EMIUSAS PNOM JEY) SAN[BA AT} WOLJ JU2IJJIp AQjuesiyiudis 9q pjnosm sjunowe Suifires ayj jey) sjedionue jJ0u saop
dnoun) oty 9auls sanjeA Irej 112y Jo uoneunxoidde 5|qEUOSEII B IR SUSWAIR]S [BIOUBUL] PAJEPLIOSUO.) G} UT JS00 PASILIOWE & PINSEA SANIIQRI] [RIOURUL] PUR S13SSE [eIoURUL JO junoure Sulfires ayy,
f 500 PISILIOWE 8 PAINSBIW SJUIWINISUI [BLIURML]  7°9€

(251421410 pajois S pun DIVp 240ys 1daoxa 'p fo suoyj U1 STUROWD [1F)
ZZ0T YDMBJA] 1€ PAPua 182K 213 10] SJUILWIIEIS [BIIUBUIJ PIAJRPI[OSUOD Y] 0] SIJON
(panunr earg spalordesyuy pue saysiSoy sunsiig} se usouy Aj1auriog) paynwiy sydafoadeaguy pue sonsidoy aunsug



Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Limited (formerly known as Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Private Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
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(2)

(b)

Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's primary focus is to foresee the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance.

Risk Management framework

The respective Group’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The
Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analysis the risk faced by the group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. The board provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as
regulatory risk, compliance risk, technology related risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises of currency risk and interest rate risk.

(i) Currency risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group transacts business in local currency. Accordingly, the Group does not have any exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the
reporting year.

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group's borrowings are at fixed rate of interest. The Group’s interest earning financial assets are term deposits with banks, which are fixed rate interest
bearing investments and accordingly, the Group is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit
risk arises principally from trade receivables, investments, loans and advances, cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and other financial assets.
The carrying amount of the financial assets represents maximum credit exposure.

Expected credit loss on financial assets other than trade receivables :

Credit risks on cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is limited as the group generally invest in deposits with banks with High credit ratings assigned
by domestic credit agencies. Investments primarily include investments in liquid mutual fund units and investment in subsidiary . The management actively
monitors the net asset value of investments, interest rate and maturity period of these investments. The group does not expect the counterparty to fail to
meet its obligations. Further also, the group has not experienced any significant impairment losses in respect of any of the investments. The security
deposits (classified under other financial assets) given for facilities taken on lease. Such security deposit will be returned to the group at the end of lease
term. Hence, the credit risk associated with such deposits is relatively low. Accordingly, no provision for expected credit loss has been provided on these
financial assets.

Trade receivables including unbilled revenue

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Customer credit risk is managed centrally and is subject to
the group’s policy and procedures which involve credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers
to which the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of business. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The group uses
expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss. The group uses a provision matrix to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables. The provision matrix takes into account available external and internal credit risk factors and the group’s historical experience with customers.
Based on the internal assessment, the expected credit loss for trade receivables is estimated to be in the range of 6%-10%.

Movement in the impairment allowances on the trade receivables:

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year 114.40 31.33
Additional provision during the year 15.63 102.90
Deduction on account provision written back (2.67) (27.42)
Bad debts written off during the year - 7.59
Deduction on account of bad debts written off (27.63) -

Balance at the end of the year 99,72 114.40
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(c)

The Group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision
matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the
ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates as per Group policy.

For trade receivables balance from related parties, there are no indications at the year end for default in payments. Accordingly, the Group does not
anticipate risk of recovery and expected credit loss in respect thereof.

The following table provides information about exposure to credit risk and expectec credit loss for trade receivables for corporate customers is as
follows:

As at 31 March 2022
In Millions of INR

Ageing

Weighted
average loss rate

Gross carrying amount  Loss allowance*

Unbilled receivables 0.00% 67.60 "

Less than 1 year 0.08% 1,313.62 1.02
1-2 years 14.56% 61.78 899
2-3 years 55.68% 18.47 10.28
More than 3 years 87.63% 90.63 79.42

*Includes credit impaired of 1,02 in the ageing bracket of 6 months to 1 year,  8.99 in the ageing bracket of 1 -2 years ¥ 2.98 in ageing bracket of 2-3
years and ¥ 69.42 in the ageing bracket of more than 3 years.

As at 31 March 2021
In Miilions of INR

Ageing

Weighted
average loss rate

Gross carrying amount  Loss allowance®

Unbilled receivables 0.00% 38.30 -

Less thah | year 1.27% 887.06 11.30
1-2 years 30.66% 62.26 19.09
2-3 years 21.65% 5427 11.75
More than 3 years 49.89% 144,87 T2.27

*Includes credit impaired of ¥ 4.80 in the ageing bracket of less than 6 months, T 3.94 in the ageing bracket of 6 months to | year, ¥ 17.04 in the ageing
bracket of 1 -2 years Z 0.89 in ageing bracket of 2-3 years and ¥ 72.27 in the ageing bracket of more than 3 years.

Liguidity risk

The group's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and cash generated from operations. The group manages its liquidity needs by
continuously menitoring cash inflows and by maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalents. Net cash requirements are compared to available cash in
order to determine any shortfalls.

Short term liquidity requirements consists mainly of trade payables and other liabilities arising during the normal course of business as of each reporting
date. The Group maintain a sufficient balance in cash and cash equivalents to meet its short term liquidity requirements. The group assesses its long term
liquidity requirements on a periodical basis and manage them through internal accruals.

The table below analyses non-derivative financial liabilities of the Group into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from the reporting
date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows

Less than 1 year  Between 1 and 5 Over 5 years Total Carrying value
years

As at 31 March 2022

Borrowings 399.10 119.81 1,327.30 2,846.74
Trade payables - - 285.11 285.11
Lease ligbilities 2,483.52 1,390.78 4,540.07 300923
Other financial liabilities 16.19 - 204.43 20443
Total 2,898.81 1,510.58 6,356.91 6,345.51
As at 31 March 2021

Borrowings 566.56 391,77 1,305.04 2,263.37 2,263.37
Trade payables 282.37 - = 282.37 28237
Lease liabilities 568.77 2,770.64 1,619.15 4.959.56 3,200.90
Other financial liabilities 231.85 27.82 - 259.68 259.68
Total 1,650.55 3,190.23 2,924.19 7,764.98 6,006.32
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39

Capital Management

The Group's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern (so that it is enabled to provide returns and create
value for its shareholders, and benefits for other stakeholders), support business stability and growth, ensure adherence to the covenants and restrictions
imposed by lenders and / or relevant laws and regulations, and maintain an optimal and efficient capital structure so as to reduce the cost of capital.
However, the key objective of the Group’s capital management is to, ensure that it maintains a stable capital structure with the focus on total equity, uphold
investor; creditor and customer confidence, and ensure future development of its business activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may issue new shares, declare dividends, return capital to shareholders, etc.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions or its business requirements.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio calculated as below:

As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Non-current borrowings 1,990.29 1,696.81
Current borrowings 856.45 566.56
Total borrowings (A) 2,846.74 2,263.37
Equity 3,807.22 3,847.24
Total equity (B) 3,807.22 3,847.24
Capital and Net borrowings (A) + (B) 6,653.96 6,110.61
Debt and equity ratio (A) / (B) 0.75 0.59
COVID'- 19

Due to outbreak of COVID-19 globally and in India, the Groups's management has made an initial assessment of impact on business and financial risks on
account of COVID-19. Considering that the Group is in the business of providing inter-modal logistics services and is operating Inland Container Depot
(ICD) through its subsdiaries which are considered under Essential Services, the management believes that the impact of this outbreak on the business and
financial position of the Group will not be significant. The management does not see any risks in the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due. The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on future business operation of the Group may be different from that
estimated as at the date of approval of these financial results/statements considering the uncertainty in overall economic environment and the Group will
continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.




Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Limited (formerly known as Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Private Limited)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(All amounts in millions of %, except share data and as stated otherwise)

40 Reconciliation of liabilities whose cash flow movements are disclosed as part of financing activities in the statement of cash flows for the year

ended 31 March 2022:

o Cash flows Non-cash changes
Balance sheet 31 March Additions Repayments(] Interest Unamortised Addition in lease Asat Carryiug valie
caption including expenses  borrowing cost  liability (including 31 March 2022
2021 Z g 2
interest) modification of lease)
Borrowings-non 1,861.69 516.72 (197.94) - 2.42 - 2,182.89 2,182.89
current (refer
note 16)*
Lease Habilities 3.200.90 - (579.33) jl4.62 - 73.04 3.009.23 3,009.23
(refer note 17A)
Borrowings 401.68 262.17 B - - - 663.85 663.85
current (refer
note 17)
Interest accrued 1:35 - (217.15) 221.35 (2.42) - 3.13 313

on borrowings

Cash outflow (net) due to change in non controlling interest amounts to ¥ 154.51 millions.

Reconciliation of liabilities whose cash flow movements are disclosed as part of financing activities in the statement of cash flows for the year

ended 31 March 2021:

P Cash flows Non-cash chang
Balance sheet Additions Repayments(| Interest Unamortised Addition in lease Asat c . I
caption 31 Murch including expenses  borrowing cost  liability (including 31 March 2021 AREYE YL
2020 p 2 :
interest) modification of lease)
Borrowings-non 579.67 1,343.15 (61.13) - - - 1,861.69 1,861.69
current (refer
note 16)*
Lease liabilities 1,606.65 - (435.29) 262.97 - 1,766.57 3,200.90 3,200.90
(refer note 17A)
Borrowings 300.54 101.14 - - - B 401.68 401.68
current (refer
note 17)
Interest accrued 0.49 - (75.76) 76.62 - - 1.35 1.35

on borrowings

Includes current maturities of long term borrowings also.
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41.1

Transaction within the group: (these transactions got eliminated in Consolidated Financial Information):

Transaction within the group effecting the statement of profit & loss : (these transactions got eliminated in Consolidated Financial Information)

Expenses

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Income

31 March 2022

E Year ended Year ended I Year ended Year ended
i 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 N 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Transaction by the parent company with other Group Entities:

Hm—.m_._mna Eriiing Logitictumt Infraprojects Income (Pristine Logistics and Infraprojects Limited)
Limited)
Pristine Mega Logistics Park Pvt Ltd. Pristine Hindustan Infraprojects Private Limited
Rail freight charges 71.93 - |Interest income on loans to related parties 15.72 9,70
Handling and transport charges 175 "

Kanpur Logististics Park Private Limited

Dividend income - 144.00

Transaction by the Group's entities with parent company:

Expenses Income
Pristine Hindustan Infraprojects Private Limited Pristine Mega Logistics Park Pvt Ltd.
Interest on loan from others 15.72 7.08 |Handling and transport services 1.75 -

Rail freight 71.93 -
Kanpur Logististics Park Private Limited
Dividend paid - 144,00

Transaction by the Group entities with other Group Entities
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

31 March 2021

Kanpur Logististics Park Private Limited
Rail freight charges

Repairs and maintenance (others)
Outsourcing cost

Pristine Mega Logistcs Park Private Limited
Handling and transport charges

Others (direct exps)

Rail freight charges

Rent

outsourcing cost - indirect

26.35
1.31
0.83

47.85
1.48
1.01

118.00
14.09
14.34

0.09

Pristine Mega Logistes Park Private Limited
Rail freight

Handling and Transport Services

Terminal Access Income

Other income

Techlog Support Services Private Limited
Handling and transport services

Reefer escotting & survey income

Terminal Access Income

591

39.87
16.26
0.14
0.32

15.69
7.05
0.02

108.83
37.40
0.01
0.43

2.81
7.82
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Repairs and maintenance - Others 14.01 0.56|Pristine Magadh Infrastracture Private Limited
Handling and transport services 4430 20.63
Indomatrix Logistics Private Limited Rental income 0.60 0.16
Rail freight charges 13.73 61.16|Terminal Access Income - 1.21
Handling and transport charges 15.79 30.87|Other income 0.26 0.01
Others (direct exps) 0.48 0.19
Kanpur Logististics Park Private Limited
Techlog Support Services Private Limited Handling and transport services 88.26 77.87
Others - direct 0.00 0.02| Terminal Access Income 3542 3239
Reefer Escotting & survey income 0.54 -
Rental Income - 0.06
Insurance - 0.56
Gain on sale of property plant and equipment 5.34 11.52
Rail freight - 0.03

Pristine Hindustan Infraprojects Private Limited
Handling and transport services 33.60 0.66
Terminal Access Income 5.90 1.90
Rail freight - 3.87

Indomatrix Logistics Private Limited

Handling and transport services 2.07 -
Ocean freight 0.19 -
Rail freight 0.63 -

Other income 0.04 -
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412  Amount due to / (from) related parties: (these transactions got eliminated in Consolidated Financial Information)
As at As at 5w As at As at
i 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021 i 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Acquitision of railway siding WWHMMM”M.H _m.un__.“._..m._.uum_-._ﬂw_w.““nH:_ﬁa Feserve and
Pristine Magadh Infrastracture Private Limited 0.32 0.43 |Pristine Hindustan Infraprojects Private Limited 6.00 -
Pristine Hindustan Infraprojects Private Limited 0.26 - |Pristine Valley Dryport 22.50 -
Kanpur Logististics Park Private Limited 161.25 -
Trade Receivable
Pristine Hindustan Infraprojects Private Limited 6.70 1.07 |Current Borrowing ( loan from related parties)
Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited 11.94 11.94 |Pristine Mega Logistcs Park Private Limited 1,416.75 1,676.46
Indomatrix Logistics Private Limited 2.78 - |Pristine Magadh Infrastracture Private Limited 313.22 413.62
Kanpur Logististics Park Private Limited 16.01 58.46 |Pristine Mega Food Park Private Limited 22482 141.92
Pristine Magadh Infrastracture Private Limited 4.34 4.12 |Pristine Hindustan Infraprojects Private Limited 199.86 141.72
Pristine Mega Logistcs Park Private Limited 198.41 120.67 |Indomatrix Logistics Private Limited 295 2.95
Techlog Support Services Private Limited 1.22 1.30 [Norteast Infralogistics & Terminals Private Limited 1.19 1.09
Pristine Malwa Logistics Park Private Limited 25.37 1.87
Loans ( Current financial assets)
Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited 2,123.77 2,379.62
Trade Creditors
Interest receivable (accrued) Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited 89.18 2.53
Pristine Logistics & Infraprojects Limited 60.39 - |Pristine Mega Logistes Park Private Limited 30.13 47.89
Pristine Magadh Infrastracture Private Limited 11.94 11.94
Other receivables Kanpur Logististics Park Private Limited 0.58 0.79
Kanpur Logististics Park Private Limited 19.75 16.25 |Pristine Hindustan Infraprojects Private Limited 0.30 16.25
Indomatrix Logistics Private Limited 108.94 118.15
Investments in subsidiaries Pristine Valley Dryport Private Limited - 16.07
Pristine Hindustan Infraprojects Private Limited 6.00 - |Techlog Support Services Private Limited 032 -
Kanpur Logististics Park Private Limited 161.25 =
Pristine Valley Dryport Private Limited 22.50 - |Othere payable
Pristine Valley Dryport Private Limited 22.39 -
Advance recoverable in cash or kind
Pristine Valley Dryport 2939 ; —usq.uEn for purchase of property, plant and
equipment
Pristine Hindustan Infraprojects Private Limited 16.25 16.25
Addition in moter vehicle Pristine Magadh Infrastracture Private Limited 3.50 -
Pristine Hindustan Infraprojects Private Limited - 13.77
Pristine Magadh Infrastracture Private Limited 6.55 =
Addition in Building
Pristine Hindustan Infraprojects Private Limited - 2.62
Sale of moter vechicle
Kanpur Logististics Park Private Limited {1.21) (1.59)
Others advance
Pristine Mega Logistcs Park Private Limited - 16,07
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42

(A)

(B)

©

(D)

(E)

(F)

G)

Additional disclosure

Relationship with Struck off Companies:
No transaction has been made with the companies struck off under section 248 of The Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956.

Undisclosed income:
There is no such income which has not been disclosed in the books of accounts. None of undisclosed income is surrendered or

disclosed as income during the period under Income Tax Act, 1961.

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency:

Profit or loss on transactions involving Crypto|No such transaction has taken place for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31
currency or Virtual Currency March 2021,

Amount of currency held as at the reporting|No such transaction has taken place for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31
date March 2021.

Deposits or advances from any person for the|No such transaction has taken place for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31
purpose of trading or investing in Crypto|March 2021,
Currency / virtual currency

Details of Benami Property held:
No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the group for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022.

Willful Defaulter:
No bank or financial institution has declared the holding company or its subsidiaries as "Willful defaulter".

Registraliﬁn of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies:
All applicable cases where registration of charges or satisfaction is required with Registrar of Companies have been done. No
registration or satisfaction is pending as at 31 March 2022,

Code on Social Security. 2020('Code') has been notified in the Official Gazette of India on 29 September 2020, which could
impact the contributions of the Group towards certain employment benefits. Effective date from which changes are applicable is
vet to be notified and the rules are yet to be framed. Impact, if any, of change will be assessed and accounted for in the period of
notification of relevant provisions.

-
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43 Restated Financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2021 and as at 1 April 2020
During the current financial year, the Group has identified classification errors pertaining to previous years and changes as per the ammended Schedule I1l. The
management has made the necessary adjustments and accordingly corresponding figures for the year ended and as at 31 March 2021 which have been restated
with appropriate disclosures and a third balance sheet as at 1 April 2020 has been presented in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS-8 "Accounting
policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors".

Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March 2021

Reference Reported amount  Reclassification Restatement  Restated amount
as at due to revised as at
31 March 2021 Schedule 111 31 March 2021
(I) Assets
(1) Non current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment (c) 3.584.09 - (233.20) 3.350.89
(b) Right-of-use assets (c) 2,951.08 - 233.20 3,184.28
(c) Capital work-in-progress 117.66 - - 117.66
(d) Investment property 266.27 - - 266.27
(e) Goodwill 39.93 - - 39.93
() Other intangible assets 133.14 - - 133.14
(g) Intangible assets under development 15.03 - - 15.03
(h) Financial assets
(i) Loans (a) 30.72 (30.72) - =
(i) Investments 33.88 - - 33.88
(iii) Others (a) 389.76 30.72 - 420.48
(i) Deferred tax assets (net) 137.75 - - 137.75
(j) Non-current tax assets (net) 130.25 - - 130.25
(k) Other non-current assets 106.05 - - 106.05
Total non-current assets 7,935.61 - - 7,935.61
(2) Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables (d) 1,034.06 - 38.30 1,072.36
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 165.00 - - 165.00
(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash 621.29 - - 621.29
equivalents above
(iv) Loans (a) 5.73 (5.75) - -
(v) Others (a) and (d) 46.33 5.75 (38.30) 13.78
{(b) Other current assets 312.57 - - 312.57
Total current assets 2,185.00 - - 2,185.00
Total assets 10,120.61 - - 10,120.61
11 Equity
(a) Equity share capital 268.35 - - 268.35
(b) Other equity 3,578.89 - - 3.,578.89
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 3,847.24 - - 3,847.24
Non-controlling interest 55.94 - = 55.94
Total equity 3,903.18 - - 3,903.18
ITT Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 1,696.81 - - 1,696.81
(i) Lease liabilities 2,924.58 - - 2,924 58
(iii) Others 27.82 - - 27.82
(b) Provisions 19.65 - - 19.65
(¢) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 7.05 - - 7.05
(d) Other liabilities 36.86 - - 36.86

Total non-current liabilities 4,712.77 - - 4,712.77
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(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings (b) 401.68 164.88 - 566.56
(ii) Lease liabilities 276.32 - - 276.32
(iii) Trade payables
1. Dues of micro enterprises and small - - “ -
enterprises
2. Dues of creditors other than micro 28237 - - 282.37
enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Others (b) 396.73 (164.88) - 231.85
(b) Other current liabilities 110.30 - - 110.30
(c) Provisions 425 - - 425
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 33.01 - - 33.01
Total current liabilities 1,504.66 - - 1,504.66
Total liabilities 6,217.43 - - 6,217.43
Total equity and liabilities 10,120.61 - - 10,120.61
Consolidated Balance sheet as at 1 April 2020
Note No Reported amount  Reclassification Restatement  Restated amount
as at due to revised as at
31 March 2020 Schedule 111 1April 2020
(1) Assets
(1) Non current assets
(a) Property. plant and equipment (c) 2,388.14 - (236.85) 2,151.29
(b) Right-of-use assets (c) 1,567.95 - 236.85 1,804.80
(c) Capital work-in-progress 221.65 - - 221.65
(d) Investment property 213.40 - = 213.40
(e) Goodwill 39.93 - - 39.93
(f) Other intangible assets 150.99 - - 150.99
(g) Intangible assets under development 11.45 - - 11.45
(h) Financial assets
(i) Loans (a) 19.86 (19.86) - -
(i) Others (a) 197.95 19.86 - 217.81
(i) Deferred tax assets (net) 30.02 - - 30.02
(j) Non-current tax assets (net) 188.03 - - 188.03
(k) Other non-current assets 153.24 - - 153.24
Total non-current assets 5,182.61 - - 5,182.61
(2) Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables (d) 1.018.35 - 20.53 1.038.88
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 187.66 - - 187.66
(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash 355.39 - - 355.39
equivalents above
(iv) Loans 4.98 (4.98) - =
(v) Others (a) and (d) 30.53 4.98 (20.53) 14.98
(b) Other current assets 154.50 - = 154.50
Total current assets 1,751.41 - - 1,751.41
Total assets 6,934.02 - - 6,934.02
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11 Equity
(a) Equity share capital 268.35 B - 268.35
(b) Other equity 3,495.34 - - 3.495.34
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 3,763.69 - - 3,763.69
Non-confrolling interest 110.59 - - 110.59
Total equity 3.874.28 5 - 3,874.28
111 Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 44324 - - 443 24
(i) Lease liabilities 1,478.49 G - 1,478.49
(iii) Others 172.94 g % 172.94
(b) Provisions 11.20 - . 11.20
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 7.96 - - 7.96
(d) Other non-current liabilities 20.15 - - 29.15
Total non-current liabilities 2,142.98 - - 2,142.98
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings (b) 287.04 149.93 - 436.97
(ii) Lease liabilities 128.16 - - 128.16
(iii) Trade payables
1. Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - =
2. Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 250.45 - - 250.45
and small enterprises
(iv) Others (b) 181.53 (149.93) - 31.60
(b) Other current liabilities 65.17 - - 65.17
(c¢) Provisions 3.69 - - 3.69
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 0.72 - - 0.72
Total current liabilities 916.76 - - 916.76
Total liabilities 3,059.74 - - 3,059.74
Total equity and liabilities 6,934.02 - - 6,934.02

Notes to the restated financial information:

Reclassification due to revised Schedule I11:

(a) As per the amendment notification dated 24 March 2021 issued by the Ministry of Corporate affairs security deposits has been reclassed from the Loan to the
other financial assets and same reclassification has been made in the previous year also. The amount reclassified in the financial year 2020-2021 amounts to ¥
36.47 and amount reclassified in the financial year 2019-2020 amounts to T 24.84.

(b) As per the amendment notification dated 24 March 2021 issued by the Ministry of Corporate affairs the amount of current maturities of long term borrowings has
been reclassed from other financial liabilities to current borrowings and same adjustment has been made in the previous financial year also. The amount reclassed
in the financial year 2020-2021 amounts to ¥ 164.88 and amount reclassified in the financial year 2019-2020 amounts to T 149.93.

Restatement pertaining to previous years:

(c) As per IndAS 116 "Leases", a lessee shall either present in the balance sheet, or disclose in the notes right-of-use assets separately from other asseis. During the
previous years certain subsidiaries classified leasehold land under property, plant and equipment which has been reclassified to Right-of-Use asset. The amount
reclassed in the financial year 2020-2021 amounts to ¥ 233.20 and in financial year 2019-2020 amounts to ¥ 236.85.

Therefore the amount of depreciation on the leasehold land has been reclassed from depreciation on property plant, equipment to amortization of right of use
assets. The amount reclassed in the financial year 2020-2021 amounts to ¥ 3.66.

(d) As per IndAS 115 "Revenue from contract with customers”, unbilled receivables, for which only the passage of time is required before payment is due needs to be
presented under the caption ‘Trade receivables’ which was classified under Other Financial Assets in previous years. The amount reclassified in financial year
2020-2021 amounts to ¥ 38.30 and amount reclassified in the financial year 2019-2020 amounts to ¥ 20.53.

(e) Due to the above adjustments there has been no impact on the Cash Flow Statements and Earnings Per share (EPS) other than shares split (refer note 33 of the
conselidated financial statements),
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44 The main object of the Holding Company is to carry on the business of logistics and other allied activities. During the year ended
31 March 2021, due to significant amount of dividend received by the Holding Company from one of its subsidiary, the Holding
Company’s “income from financial assets” constituted more than 50 percent of the gross income for the financial year ended 31
March 2021. Further, the ‘financial assets’ of the Holding Company were also more than 50 percent of its total assets as at 31
March 2021 (mainly on account of investment in subsidiaries and loans granted to subsidiaries). Accordingly, the Holding
Company meets the eligibility criteria (*Principal business’ test) as per the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) press release vide No.
1998-99/1269 dated 8 April 1999 for being classified as a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) from financial year 2021-22,
However, in view of management, the significant amount of dividend received in the previous year is non-recurring in nature and
such dividend does not represent income from ordinary activities of the Holding Company. Further, the intention of Holding
Company is to remain engaged in the business of logistics and allied activities which is also noted and confirmed by the Board.
This view is also supported by an independent legal advice obtained by management which states that if the Company satisfies the
50-50 test based on the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 on account of a one-time declaration of
dividend by its subsidiary company, this one- off transaction cannot be termed as “business’ for evaluation of principal business
test as per RBI press release. The Holding Company has made a submission to the RBI stating the facts of the matter, its
assessment that the requirement to apply for NBFC registration would not be applicable due to the one-off nature of the dividend
income during the year ended 31 March 2021 and its intent to remain engaged in its principal business of logistics and allied
activities. The Holding Company has not received any communication from RBI in this regard till date.

45  Other Matters

(a)  In respect of amounts as mentioned under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, there were no dues required to be credited to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund for the year ended 31 March 2022 and for the year ended 31 March 2021,

(b)  In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all current assets and long term loans & advances, appearing in the balance sheet as at 31
March 2022 have a value on realization, in the ordinary course of the Group’s business, at least equal to the amount at which they
are stated in the financial statements. In the opinion of the board of directors, no provision is required to be made against the
recoverability of these balances.

(¢)  During the year, the Company has provided a unsecured loan of ¥ 23.5 to one of its wholly owned subsidiary Pristine Malwa
Logistics Park Private Limited for submitting expression of interest towards resolution plan of Sical Logistics Limited. Out of the
amount loaned, Pristine Malwa Logistics Park Private Limited has deposited earest money of ¥ 10 for the said purpose. Apart
from this, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(d)  During the year one of the wholly owned subsidiary of the group Pristine Malwa Logistics Park Private Limited has received
amount from its holding company amounting to ¥ 23.5, out of this amount the subsidiary Company has submitted the expression
of interest along with earnest money of % 10 for the resolution plan of Sical Logistics Limited which was admitted under NCLT.
Apart from this no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(e)  No dividend has been declared or paid by the group in the financial year 2021-2022.
46  Subsequent events
There have:been no events after the reporting date that requires disclosure in the consolidated financial statements.
The accompanying notes referred to form an integral part of these financial statements.
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